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“One of the key developments that took place in 2019 was
the onboarding of private investors through the issuance of
notes. With the addition of USD 17.2 million in notes raised
from two investors, the public private partnership envisioned
when the fund was established finally came to fruition”.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2020
Left to right :
Ms Laure Wessemius-Chibrac (Chair),
Dr Giuseppe Ballocchi,
Ms Claudia Huber,
Mr Stefan Hirche,
Ms Saumya Kailasapathy
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INTRODUCTION

WELCOME FROM
LAURE WESSEMIUS-CHIBRAC
CHAIR OF THE BOARD

It is my pleasure to introduce you to REGMIFA’s 2020 and tenth
anniversary Annual Report. It comprises the Annual Report with
the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for
your detailed reading.

Accordingly, with this significant boost the Fund’s year-end
outstanding loan portfolio grew to a record level of USD 136
million (at historical cost) from USD 123 million in 2019. While
the Fund did not enter any new economies (REGMIFA invested
in 19 countries at year end 2020), the Investment Manager
continues to evaluate tangible opportunities in new regions,
such as Ethiopia, Togo, Benin and Guinea.

COVID-19 SETS THE STAGE FOR 2020
The Covid-19 pandemic has severely affected Sub-Saharan
African (SSA) economies, resulting in a recession in the region
(World Bank estimates a -3.3% contraction in GDP) for the
first time in 20 years. 2020 ultimately proved to be a year of
resilience with many countries implementing expansionary
fiscal and monetary policies including central bank regulations
in support of forbearance, decreasing policy rates, extension of
emergency lines of credit and acceleration of a more digitallybased economy for both clients and financial institutions.
Indeed, many financial institutions were relatively well prepared
for this sort of crisis due to their robust capital bases, as
required by a number of central banks in recent years, and
mostly adequate liquidity levels. While the pandemic is by no
means over, many financial institutions and most of the partner
lending institutions (PLIs) with which the Fund works, have
begun to show sustained levels of improvement.

HIGHLIGHTS
As part of the Fund’s 10-year anniversary, a strategy review was
undertaken to assess the suitability and the relevance of the
Fund’s focus for the next 10 years, given the many economic,
social and political changes that have occurred in the SSA
region over the first decade. While the mission of the Fund has
not fundamentally changed, the strategy related to realizing
the mission was adapted to better incorporate the current and
projected context in which the Fund works.

RECORD DISBURSEMENTS
Despite the economic and social turmoil caused by the advent
of Covid-19 early in the year, the Fund ended 2020 with a
record level of disbursements, which totaled USD 73.7 million
across 46 transactions (up from USD 50.8 million across
39 transactions in 2019). The Fund played a critical role in
supporting its PLIs during very tumultuous times, providing
strong renewal (24) and top-up (16) support as PLIs looked
to bolster their liquidity positions to weather the uncertain
times brought by the pandemic. Although travel was prohibited
for most of the year, the Fund was still able to disburse five
transactions to new partners this year, two of which were
substantial investments (USD 10 million each) to Access Bank
Nigeria and KCB Bank Kenya in the form of subordinated debt.
This will allow these PLIs to further strengthen their capital
structures and expand outreach to their substantial MSME
portfolios in these key markets.
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KEY FIGURES

AS OF DECEMBER 2020

SINCE INCEPTION

GROSS ASSET VALUE

ORIGINATED

USD 155,922,162

USD 483,006,527

NET ASSET VALUE

PRIVATE DEBT TRANSACTIONS

USD 135,512,535

395

OUTSTANDING PORTFOLIO

INSTITUTIONS FINANCED

(NOMINAL AT DISBURSEMENT)

93

USD 136,085,704

NUMBER OF
MICRO CLIENTS FINANCED

NUMBER OF
MICRO CLIENTS FINANCED

1,553,138

165,188

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
FACILITY
PROJECTS APPROVED

NUMBER OF COUNTRIES
19

131
EUR 8.0 MILLION

NUMBER OF PARTNER
LENDING INSTITUTIONS
52

COUNTRIES
23

NUMBER OF OUTSTANDING
INVESTMENTS

YEARS SINCE INCEPTION

104

11

SECTORS
TRADE / AGRICULTURE /
HOUSING / EDUCATION
NOTE
Throughout this Annual Report we show the PLI portfolio at cost, which better reflects the Fund’s exposure, given the fully
hedged strategy of the Fund. In the audited financial statements included at the end of this Annual Report, the PLI portfolio is
reported at market rate.
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as the change in the accounting method for upfront fees (now
amortized over the life of the loan, generating a USD 0.8 million
deferred revenue). This resulted in the C-shares being served
approximately 60% of their target dividends, all of which were
capitalized. While the Net Asset Value (NAV) of C-shares as
of year-end 2020 rose in absolute terms to USD 80,981,854
(2019: USD 56,683,511) due to the receipt of USD 24,414,320
of additional capital, their retained earnings position remained
stable at a negative USD 5.7 million (2019: negative USD 5.6
million).

The main changes broadened the definitions of the mission
and of the target investees so that the Fund can also support
low and middle-income households (LMIHs) with access
to primary goods and services (education, off-grid solar,
affordable housing, etc.) and work with different types of
financial intermediaries (e.g. holding companies and larger
commercial banks), in addition to microfinance institutions and
small and medium enterprise (SME) banks.
Another key development for the Fund was the further
strengthening of its liquidity and capital position, which was
realized by mobilizing another private investor for USD 1.5
million in Notes and an additional USD 24.4 million in C-shares
from BMZ/KfW. This ongoing interest in the Fund as a public
private partnership reflects the fact that not only does the Fund
support impact in key SSA markets, but it is also seen as a solid
financial investment.

FURTHER STRENGTHENED CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Fund has already secured a significant level of new
C-shares and has strong leads to source further C-shares
from existing and new investors in the coming year. These
C-shares would not only provide further support to the A and
B shareholders, but also allow the Fund to leverage its capital
structure and increase its funding capacity and outreach. As of
year-end, the C-share NAV represented 53.9% of the Gross
Asset Value (GAV) (2019: 38.8%), which continues to provide
a strong first-loss buffer to the Fund.

OUTLOOK FOR 2021
While the crisis is not over and the road to recovery remains
uncertain and likely to be uneven across the region (World
Bank is estimating a rebound in GDP growth to +2.1% in 2021
for Sub-Saharan Africa), the rollout of vaccines globally and
ongoing economic support in the world’s largest economies
should ultimately benefit global trade and SSA’s role in it.
It is undeniable that the most vulnerable citizens in the SSA
region have been dealt a massive setback, making the Fund’s
role in supporting financial inclusivity and outreach even more
heightened.

SOCIAL IMPACT
Deals with smaller Tier-2 and Tier-3 PLIs represent 40% of
the deals disbursed in 2020. However, travel restrictions and
volatile conditions prevented the Investment Manager from
sourcing many new Tier-2 and Tier-3 PLIs or in some cases
providing renewals to existing PLIs. The Fund’s investments in
the 13 least developed countries (LDC, as defined by the UN)
in which it works decreased slightly to USD 57.8 million (2019:
USD 66.2 million), with the largest drops in Ghana, Ivory Coast
and DR Congo. However, the record disbursements, particularly
the subordinated debts to two large banks, ensured outreach
remains strong. With ongoing recovery in the region, the Fund
should be able to increase its support to smaller PLIs in these
markets in 2021.

Taking into account the aforementioned context, updated
strategy and strong support, particularly from the C-share
investors, the Investment Manager plans to continue to
support existing and new PLIs with liquidity and strategic
subordinated debt, and accompany them with targeted
Technical Assistance. The focus will not only be on the
traditional Tier-2 and Tier-3 PLIs but also on other financial
intermediaries that support MSMEs and LMIHs. Further
geographic expansion may be dependent on the Investment
Manager’s ability to travel or capacity to identify suitable local
consultants to complement online due diligences.

In 2020, the REGMIFA Technical Assistance Facility (TAF)
focused on completing all the projects under its donors’
commitments. This translated into three projects completed
during the year 2020 for a value of EUR 212,967 (121
projects completed from 2011 to date for a total value of EUR
7 million). Additionally, the strategy that the TAF Manager
has put in place over time, to consolidate the PLIs’ ownership
of the TA projects, has enabled the TAF to collect a total of
EUR 304,800 in co-financing. This amount financed the
first edition of the Technical Assistance Package 7 on Crisis
Impact Mitigation (TAP-CIM), with a digital financial services
design focus during the year 2020, in response to the
Covid-19 pandemic.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Notwithstanding high uncertainty and potential for losses in the
year, the Fund’s financial performance in 2020 allowed it to
serve the full target dividends for the A and B-share classes
for the tenth year in a row. The Fund did experience a loss
of income, the consequence of an interest rate mismatch
between the Fund’s assets and liabilities, which was due to the
precipitous drop of LIBOR in the first half of the year, as well
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Digital financial services are helping to build the capacity of
PLIs in responding to the crisis and to progressively implement
systems and frameworks not only for business continuity but
also expanding their reach to new market segments. The Fund
showed continuous support to the mission of the TAF and from
the 2019 income contributed USD 417,255 to recapitalize the
TAF’s assets, which will fund the second edition of the TAPCIM to the benefit of nine PLIs. In 2021, the TAF is getting
ready to have an expanded focus on supporting PLIs to better
serve SMEs and LMIHs, to match the broadened range of
target investees and mission.

In March 2021, we finally celebrated the delayed 10th
anniversary of the Fund’s launch, “10 Years of Impact”, and
the launch of an updated strategy for the 10 years to come.
We now look forward to 2021 with REGMIFA maintaining its
position as a reliable funder to its partner institutions with a
strong focus on its mission.
The Board of REGMIFA hopes you will find reading this report
interesting, and we are always delighted to hear the views of
our investors, donors and service providers.

CONCLUDING REMARKS
2020 has been a year of many challenges, especially for
the target beneficiaries of REGMIFA. However, in the face
of hardship, the Board is humbled not only by the incredible
level of resilience that it has witnessed from the partner
lending institutions of the Fund, but above all by the resilience
of their clients: the women and men behind the micro, small
and medium enterprises in Sub-Saharan Africa. The Board
would like to thank REGMIFA’s investors, donors and service
providers for their continued support and commitment to the
Fund’s mission and especially the Investment Manager for their
incredible flexibility and well-thought-out strategy in managing
the crisis and continued efforts to further improve the Fund’s
processes and growth.
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FUND HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
EMMANUELLE JAVOY
HEAD OF BLENDED FINANCE

with development finance institutions. This will allow these
financial institutions to further strengthen their capital structures
and expand their outreach to SMEs. Our goal is to have
investments in at least one commercial bank with an SME
portfolio in each of the main Sub-Saharan Africa economies.
Another aspect of the new strategy is to grow REGMIFA’s
geographical outreach. We expect to add three new countries
to the portfolio in 2021.
REGMIFA’S NEW 10-YEAR STRATEGY BEGINS
REGMIFA was created 10 years ago, initially with the goal of
supporting microfinance institutions (MFIs) in Sub-Saharan
Africa, as a public-private blended finance initiative. The goal
was to boost the development of the financial inclusion sector,
providing opportunities for micro-entrepreneurs.

COVID-19 INSIGHT SURVEY GUIDES ACTIONS
Relationships are fundamental to working in the microfinance
sector. This means for REGMIFA keeping in contact with the
PLIs, and MFIs keeping in contact with their end-borrowers.
Covid-19 lockdowns made this very difficult and caused huge
disruption, as many MFIs do not work with digital models of
contact but in cash and physical meetings. Without this human
contact, a great deal of reinvention of how to keep in touch with
end-borrowers has had to be rapidly created.

In 2020 REGMIFA launched a new 10-year strategy. Having
started in the microfinance sector, the Fund now set the goal of
also lending to the small and medium enterprise (SME) sector,
in which there is a funding gap. The other new development
was to expand the mission to more broadly support low and
middle-income households (LMIHs) to improve their quality
of life, e.g. with access to education, off-grid solar energy, and
affordable housing.

We carried out a survey to measure the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on REGMIFA’s end-borrowers in terms of their
financial wellbeing, repayment capacity, food consumption and
coping mechanisms. There were striking key findings, initially
showing a gloomy picture for end-borrowers:
93% in a worsened financial situation, 89% with reduced
income and 44% reporting decreased food consumption.
The survey provided PLIs with insights to better serve their
end-borrowers and address the flexibility they needed. With
a flexible response from the MFIs, end-borrowers became
increasingly confident that they would be able to repay their
loans in the longer term.

REGMIFA’s new strategy will require investment in a more
diverse range of partner lending institutions (PLIs) to reach
more SMEs and LMIHs. The new strategy was supported
by the shareholders and subsequently reflected in the issue
document of REGMIFA. The expansion of the Fund was also
supported through an additional C-share first-loss investment
from BMZ/KfW.

We also found the impact on end-borrowers differing from
country to country, with some governments directly supporting
people through the crisis. Most governments enacted a
moratorium on the repayment of loans to freeze the situation.
As these moratoriums were lifted, we have started to see the
impact on portfolio at risk, with some write-offs expected to
materialize in 2021.

REACHING OUR PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP GOAL
Looking back from 2010 to 2019, the Fund had been wholly
financed by public entities and in 2019 the Fund also attracted
private investments in line with the Fund’s mission. The year
2020 saw a further private investment, this time from Impact
Bridge. It is true that a Sub-Saharan Africa portfolio is likely
to have slightly higher risk than other regions of the world, but
REGMIFA proves that it is both manageable and attractive to
private investment.

So, there is not one picture across Sub-Saharan Africa,
but what is common is the dedication that MFIs have
applied to support their end-borrowers. MFIs have had
to be responsive and flexible with their borrowers, and in
turn REGMIFA has taken the same approach with MFIs.
The overall objective has been to help end-borrowers to
recover and to restart.

Since June 2020, REGMIFA has been able to invest in
organizations other than MFIs, and now has two investments
in commercial banks in Kenya and Nigeria receiving USD 10
million each as subordinated debt participating in syndications

11
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PORTFOLIO BY CURRENT TIER
(% PORTFOLIO BY VALUE)

PORTFOLIO BY TIER
(NUMBER OF PLIS)

4%

30
25

25

28%
20

19

19
15

17

16

10

18

5

68%

0

Tier 1

Tier 1

Tier 2

Tier 2

Tier (Current loan)

Tier 3

Tier (First loan)

Tier 3

TOP-5 PLI EXPOSURES
PLI

COUNTRY

Currency

USD MILLION

% OF PORTFOLIO

Access Bank

Nigeria

USD

10.0

6.4%

KCB

Kenya

USD

10.0

6.4%

SA Taxi DF

South Africa

ZAR

8.6

5.5%

Baobab Côte
D’Ivoire

Cote D'Ivoire (Ivory Coast)

EUR/XOF

6.1

3.9%

Fidelis Finance

Burkina Faso

EUR/XOF

5.2

3.4%
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OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL (% PORTFOLIO BY VALUE)

KENYA

16

NIGERIA

15

SOUTH AFRICA

15

BURKINA FASO

8

COTE D’IVOIRE

8

(IVORY COAST)

SENEGAL

7

MADAGASCAR

5

ZAMBIA

5

GHANA

5

MALI

4

UGANDA

4

TANZANIA

2

DR CONGO

2

ANGOLA

2

RWANDA

1

MALAWI

1

NIGER

1

SIERRA LEONE

0,4

CAMEROON

0,1
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%
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10%

12%

14%

16%
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COLLABORATION ACROSS MIVS
It would not make sense for REGMIFA to work alone on
developing special measures for its PLIs. A lot of work was
done in collaboration with other microfinance investment
vehicles (MIVs) to ensure that there was alignment between
MIVs on both assessing the payment problems of MFIs due to
the pandemic, and then jointly agreeing on a common response
taking account of the Covid crisis. Where financial institutions
(FI) were unable to repay loans because of lockdowns imposed
on their borrowers, all the MIVs who lend to that FI agreed to
extend the repayment schedule.

Another change has been the use of online due diligence
to assess the merits of a new lending partnership. This has
involved video calls not only to the national office of the
PLIs, but also their local offices and end-borrowers. We are
developing experience and are increasingly confident that
online due diligence is workable as the technology improves.
2020 was in so many ways a year in which things came together
for REGMIFA, and this was on top of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Despite the challenges, the Fund’s year-end outstanding loan
portfolio grew to a record level of USD 136 million from USD
123 million in 2019. This puts REGMIFA in a good position for
2021 to implement its new 10-year strategy.

LEARNING FROM THE COVID-19 CRISIS
The joint-MIV initiative enabled REGMIFA to act quickly and
without the need for expensive legal work to rearrange loans
and give the MFIs, and in turn their clients, the breathing space
they needed. This is thanks to the quick action of REGMIFA’s
Board to approve the revised loan arrangements. This type of
cooperation between MIVs and MFIs has proved to be the best
way to work through the crisis and achieve the best outcome
for all concerned. This is one of the many lessons learned
during the crisis.
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2020 GNI

KENYA
KEY INDICATORS
DECEMBRE 2020

POPULATION

INFLATION RATE

53.7 MILLION

5.4%

POPULATION LIVING IN POVERTY

FOREX HEDGING COSTS

36.1%

8.1%

HUMAN DEVELOPMENT RANK

PRIVATE CREDIT (% OF GDP)

143/189

32.4%

GNI PER CAPITA

REMITTANCES (USD)

USD 1’237

3.1 BILLION

REAL GDP GROWTH

FOREIGN AID (USD)

-0.3%

3.3 BILLION
11 6

KENYA

MEET MR JONATHAN NJENGA
FARMER

COUNTRY: KENYA
Between 2015 and 2019, Kenya was among the fastestgrowing Sub-Saharan economies, with economic growth
averaging at an annual 5.7%. Political and economic reforms
contributed to investor confidence, as well as the strong
services sector, and the stable macroeconomic environment
that drove the Kenyan economy’s sustained expansion.
The World Bank projects that Kenya has the potential to become
one of Africa’s greatest success stories. However, poverty,
climate change, inequality and continued weak private sector
investment pose key development challenges. Furthermore,
two-thirds of Kenya’s population is between 18 and 35 years of
age. For this young population, investments into human capital
to build the populations’ skill level are crucial.
Overall, the Kenyan economy is still vulnerable to internal as
well as external shocks. As observed in countries globally, the
implications of Covid-19 slowed down Kenya’s progression.
The Covid-mitigation measures disrupted the tourism and
manufacturing sectors most significantly. In addition, while the
agricultural industry experienced relative growth, a regional
locust infection in the North-East of Kenya starting in 2020
also harmed the agricultural sector.
Sustainable economic development is now crucial to create the
jobs needed for the many young Kenyans in the labor market.
To this end, the World Bank prioritizes elevating investment
levels within the private sector, increasing business productivity
levels, and augmenting the population’s skill level.

In recent years, Juhudi Kilimo has received capacity
building from the REGMIFA TAF in the form of scholarships
for training programs and technical assistance. The TAF
support allowed Juhudi Kilimo staff to participate in leading
microfinance training programs, such as the School of
African Microfinance (SAM) and the Boulder Institute of
Microfinance. Technical assistance programs supported the
development of a competency-based staff development
program and the strengthening of its Risk Management
framework. To date, Juhudi Kilimo has received capacity
building valued at EUR 75,000.
CLIENT: MR. MENZI JABULANI
Jonathan Njenga worked as an aeronautical engineer when
he realized that his farming income exceeded his monthly
salary. Consequently, he shifted to farming completely. With a
first loan of around EUR 375 from Juhudi Kilimo he bought a
cow. The second, third, and fourth loans, he invested in buying
more cattle, irrigating his farm, and growing his own cattle feed.
Today, he runs a successful farm that employs 20 permanent
and 30 flexible workers.
As a client of Juhudi Kilimo, Mr Njenga has access to credit
and, in addition, access to technical training. Juhudi Kilimo’s
training department ensures that all clients, regardless of
their location, receive training to make informed decisions
about their practices’ impact. Mr Njenga’s farm reflects Juhudi
Kilimo’s emphasis on sustainability. He uses organic fertilizer
and plants trees for their shade to accommodate bees. He
gathers their honey rather than harvesting the trees as timber.
Today, Mr Njenga’s farm has grown to provide a livelihood for
his family and other families in the region.

PLI: JUHUDI KILIMO
Juhudi Kilimo’s vision is to provide rural smallholder farmers
across East Africa with transformative financial solutions. As
Kenya’s leading financial service provider for the agricultural
sector, the MFI fills a crucial financing gap for the agricultural
industry.
Juhudi Kilimo operates with a network of 40 branches
spread across rural towns in Kenya’s main agriculture regions.
Reflecting their target market, 100% of Juhudi Kilimo’s clients
live in rural areas.
Even when facing strong competition from informal and
mobile moneylenders in Kenya, Juhudi Kilimo retains a
competitive position due to its niche business model. The MFI
specializes in group loans for crop and animal farming, and
other investments along the agricultural value chain. All loans
carry credit life insurance and asset life insurance against
theft and livestock diseases.
Mitigation measures to the Covid-19 pandemic slowed Juhudi
Kilimo’s growth in 2020. However, even amid lockdown, the
MFI posted positive financial results. Already in December
2020, the MFI’s disbursement and collection rates were back
to pre-Covid levels.

KEY INDICATORS
DECEMBER 2020

TOTAL ASSETS

USD 27.5 MILLION
PORTFOLIO SIZE

USD 17.4 MILLION
NUMBER OF ACTIVE BORROWERS:

58,389
AVERAGE LOAN SIZE (BALANCE):

USD 305
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SOCIAL RETURN AT A GLANCE

In 2020, REGMIFA invested USD 73.7 million across 46
transactions, ending the year with a net portfolio size of USD
136.1 million and reaching 165,188 end-borrowers who:
Are a majority women (49%) – with 37% men and 14% legal
entities.
Reside primarily in urban areas (78%).
Live in 19 different countries, notably Kenya (18%), South
Africa (16%), Ghana (14%) and Tanzania (10%).
Are running a micro-, small and medium enterprise (82%).
Are active in trade (56%) and also services, agriculture, and
production (35%).
Received on average a USD 826 loan, representing 37% of
GNI per capita, on average.
Borrowed through both individual and group loans (82% and
18% respectively).
Repaid their loans on time in 86% of cases.

The Fund is actively contributing to the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals 1, 5 and 8 by:

Ensuring that low-income
individuals have access to
financial services, including
microfinance and savings
products

Providing women with equal
access to economic resources
and opportunities

For more information, read the full REGMIFA Environmental
and Social Responsibility (ESR) 2020 Annual Report.

19
1

Promoting job creation by
financing micro-, small and
medium enterprises, and
expanding access to banking
and financial services

0
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TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
FACILITY UPDATE
MARIANO LARENA - HEAD OF IMPACT

skills at specialized training courses from renowned training
entities. This included networking and experience-sharing
opportunities with the staff of peer PLIs. These programs
are hugely beneficial, with staff returning highly motivated,
aligned with the mission of REGMIFA and inspired with
ideas for their organizations.
Over the past 10 years, everyone has learned a great deal.
One dimension we have developed over time is encouraging
PLIs to take ownership, showing their commitment not
only in working together, but also by making a financial
contribution to the TA project. With a 24% financial
contribution on average, there is real commitment to
reaching the TA goals. We see this co-ownership principle
as important to success.

A UNIQUE APPROACH TO TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
The Technical Assistance Facility (TAF) has been an essential
part of REGMIFA right from the start of the Fund. The TAF
provides non-financial services to REGMIFA partner lending
institutions (PLIs) with support received from resource
contributions and financial donations. The technical assistance
(TA) projects designed by the TAF enable PLIs to support
the development of sustainable businesses that can grow
over time, and also develop and improve their own social and
environmental performance. The objective of the TAF is not
about pursuing the agenda of individual donors, but about
pooling resources to create a facility with a shared vision and
greater impact than any single donor or program. That makes
the REGMIFA TAF quite unique in its approach.

Furthermore, and with respect to the creation of valuefor-money and increasing outreach and efficiency, we
have also learned how important it is to pool the needs of
PLIs in different topics, which we have addressed with our
Technical Assistance Packages (TAP). These are programs
that outreach multiple PLIs in various countries to manage
common TA needs. While the same methodology is applied
to each PLI, the content is tailored to the particular PLI using
regional or local expertise where possible, coupled with
international skill sets.

REGMIFA CELEBRATES 10 YEARS
OF TA ACHIEVEMENTS
In the 10 years since REGMIFA launched, the TAF has
approved over 131 TA projects for a total value of EUR 8
million. But maybe more remarkable than the numbers, has
been the impact in developing the TAF as an integral part
of REGMIFA’s specialized service offering.
The considerable outreach of the programs implemented
by the TAF has contributed to making financial inclusion
happen. Over the last 10 years we have dedicated our
efforts to TA projects focused on product development,
human resources and training, risk methodologies and
governance. In addition, TAF has enabled the integration of
social performance management into the DNA of our PLIs.
For example: in developing PLI awareness of the Client
Protection Principles with a view to meeting the real needs
of end-beneficiaries by providing financial literacy training.
Among all the projects we have developed so far, there is
one initiative to highlight in particular for its high valuefor-money in terms of outreach, motivational impact and
relatively low budget requirements. That initiative is the
TAF scholarship program in its different year editions,
which has allowed a number of employees of PLIs to
develop and deepen their professional knowledge and
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OVERALL TAF PERFORMANCE SINCE INCEPTION - CUMULATED DATA
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TA HIGHLIGHTS 2020
What hit us all in 2020 was of course the Covid-19 pandemic.
For REGMIFA the question was how do we manage this
situation from the point of view of a socially responsible
investor? And also, as a provider of non-financial services, how
do we best support our PLIs? It became clear that a focus on
digital financial services was going to not only be critical with
lockdowns reducing the possibility for face-to-face meetings,
but there was going to be a longer-term development need for
digital outreach to end-beneficiaries.

FUTURE PLANS
While supporting financial inclusion and SMEs remains the
core business of our TA programs, we are also developing
new projects based on the needs of our PLIs in areas such as
environmental protection (e.g. green energy loans), education,
health, agriculture and food security.
Over the past 10 years, the REGMIFA TAF has benefited from
the excellent support from the TAF Committee and the Board
of Directors, and we are grateful for that. As a further logical
consequence of the gained experience and consolidated
TA acumen, Symbiotics established at the end of 2016 the
Symbiotics Association for Sustainable Development (SASD),
a non-profit Swiss association which hosts all Symbiotics TA
mandates and activities, including the REGMIFA TAF. As a legal
entity with separate governance from the investment activities,
SASD offers contributors and TA beneficiaries greater focus
and efficiency in the independent design and management of
TA projects.

Our Technical Assistance Package on Crisis Impact Mitigation
(TAP-CIM) is a EUR 1.2 million project over 2½ years with a
focus on digital financial services (DFS). DFS are helping to
build the capacity of PLIs in responding to the Covid-19 crisis,
and progressively implementing systems not only for business
continuity but also expanding their reach into new markets.

DISTRIBUTION BY LOCATION

DISTRIBUTION BY GENDER
14%

22%

49%

37%

78%

Women

Rural
Urban

Men
Legal entities
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LENDING METHODOLOGY

PRODUCT TYPE

46%
35%

18%
82%

9%
5%
3%
1%
0.7%
Micro entreprises

Housing

SME

Other

Small solidarity group loans

Large entreprises

Education

Individual loans

Consuption

NON-CREDIT SERVICES

DISTRIBUTION BY ACTIVITY
84%

4%
8%

80%
71%

9%
41%
56%

23%

Trade

Savings

Services

Insurance

Other

Payment services

Agriculture

Non-financial services

Production

24

REGMIFA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

INVESTOR RELATIONS UPDATE
FLORIAN GROHS
RELATIONSHIP MANAGER BLENDED FINANCE

OUTLOOK FOR 2021
Two of REGMIFA’s current development finance investors
are in discussions about extending their mezzanine Class B
shares (B-shares). There has also been a further B-shares
commitment from OeEB of USD 10 million in early 2021.
Looking ahead, the German Government has budgeted a
further USD 24.4 million of C-shares for REGMIFA.
In 2021, REGMIFA plans to grow the portfolio by USD 30
million, and with two investors due to be repaid this year,
additional investments are needed. This year we are seeing
an increasing interest from private institutional investors with
a substantial investment planned to close in late 2021.

NEW INVESTMENTS FROM BMZ/KFW AND
IMPACT BRIDGE
The year’s most significant new investment came from BMZ,
the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and
Development. BMZ invested USD 24.4 million in first-loss
Class C shares (C-shares) via KfW, the German state-owned
development bank. This investment significantly strengthens
the Fund, enabling it to grow. Both BMZ and KfW have long
relationships with REGMIFA. The purpose of their recent
investment is to strengthen SME development, sustaining
and creating jobs in the G20 Compact with Africa (CwA)
countries. CwA was initiated under the German 2017 G20
Presidency to promote private investment in Africa, with 12
African countries joining so far.

Looking back to 2019, REGMIFA was fully funded by public
institutions. In 2020 ASN Bank became REGMIFA’s first
private investor, followed by an investment from a faith-based
investor. We hope to soon welcome an ethical bank as a
new investor. REGMIFA is now well placed as an attractive
investment fund for private investors. This is therefore a
significant moment for the private-public partnership which is
important for Africa, often perceived as higher risk.
As part of REGMIFA’s new 10-year strategy we will increasingly
be reaching out to private investors. We can now show that the
risk is manageable, through Symbiotics’ selection of partners
and the Fund’s structure. Our goal is to have 30% of our
investment coming from private investors by 2023.

With this investment, BMZ/KfW have also made a grant of
USD 5 million to the Technical Assistance Fund (TAF), since
BMZ/KfW share the double agenda of REGMIFA to support
our partner lending institutions (PLIs) with both investment
and technical assistance.
REGMIFA benefits from Symbiotics’ networks to attract new
funds and 2020 saw the arrival of a new Spanish-based
private impact investor, Impact Bridge, which invested USD
1.5 million in the form of notes. Impact Bridge was attracted
by REGMIFA’s focus on development in Africa, its positive
track record, and protection of the tiered-financing structure.
CELEBRATING REGMIFA’S 10-YEAR ANNIVERSARY
Initially planned to be held in Madrid in 2020, REGMIFA
celebrated its 10-year anniversary with an online event in
March 2021.
REGMIFA regularly plans events to keep its investors
informed and last year these events went online. A webinar
covered the Covid-19 crisis and how end-borrowers are
affected. Another webinar covered the performance of the
Fund with the opportunity to ask questions. The next webinar
was on the technical assistance that helps REGMIFA achieve
its mission.
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LATEST ESR RATING

REGMIFA actively seeks to work with socially oriented PLIs
and monitors social responsibility through its ESR ratings
which are calculated prior to any disbursement and then
updated annually when available.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY RATING
(PORTFOLIO-WEIGHTED)
Client Protection
5

The average ESR score of PLIs in the Fund’s portfolio remained
stable at 3.6 stars out of 5.

Social
Governance

4

Community
Engagement

3
2
1

Average Social Rating

0

Product
Quality

ESR Rating at a glance
The ESR Rating shows the extent to which a PLI contributes
to socio-economic development and acts responsibly towards
its stakeholders. It includes 100 indicators split into seven
dimensions:
1 Social governance (20%)
2 Labor climate (15%)
3 Financial inclusion (15%)
4 Client protection (15%)
5 Product quality (15%)
6 Community engagement (15%)
7 Environmental policy (5%)

Environmental
Policy

Labor
Climate

Financial
Inclusion
2020

Each indicator is graded from 0 to 3 (0 = non-existence or
very poor, 3 = existence and high quality) and each of the
seven dimensions contributes to the final score as per its
weighting (see % amounts in brackets above). The final score
is a rating from 0 to 5 stars, i.e. an extremely strong likelihood
that the Fund contributes to sustainable development via its
investment in the assessed PLI, or an extremely low risk of
having a negative social impact.
See the full REGMIFA Environmental and Social Responsibility
(ESR) 2020 Annual Report for more information.

1 The calculation excludes two PLIs, Access Bank plc in Nigeria (7%
of portfolio outstanding) and KCB Bank in Kenya (7% of portfolio
outstanding). These are syndicated transactions with the FMO (Dutch
development bank) and the International Finance Corporation, respectively.
Therefore, the environmental and social risks were assessed by the
respective development finance institutions, and Symbiotics did not
conduct the ESR rating.
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We are pleased to submit the Annual Report for the year ended
31 December 2020 and the related Independent Auditor’s
Report for the Regional MSME Investment Fund for SubSaharan Africa S.A., SICAV-SIF (“REGMIFA” or the “Fund”).
COVID-19 SETS THE STAGE FOR 2020
While the COVID-19 pandemic has severely affected subSaharan African (“SSA”) economies, resulting in a recession
(according to the World Bank an estimated -3.3% GDP
contraction1) in the region for the first time in 20 years, 2020
ultimately proved to be a year of resilience with many countries
implementing expansionary fiscal and monetary policies
including central bank regulations in support of forbearance,
decreasing policy rates, extension of emergency lines of credit
and acceleration of a much more digitally-based economy for
both clients and financial institutions. Indeed, many financial
institutions were relatively well prepared for this sort of crisis
due to robust capital bases, as required by a number of central
banks in recent years, and mostly adequate liquidity levels2.
While the pandemic is by no means over, many financial
institutions and most of the partner lending institutions (PLIs)
with which the Fund works, have begun showing sustained
levels of improvement.
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L-2180 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg
INVESTMENT MANAGER AND PLACING AGENT
Symbiotics S.A.
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RECORD DISBURSEMENTS IN 2020
Despite the economic and social turmoil caused by the advent
of COVID-19 early in the year, the Fund ended 2020 with a
record level of disbursements, which totalled USD 74.0 million
across 46 transactions (up from USD 50.8 million across 39
transactions in 2019). Indeed, the Fund played a critical role
in supporting its PLIs during very tumultuous times, providing
strong renewal (24) and top up (16) support as PLIs looked
to bolster their liquidity positions to weather the uncertain
times brought by the pandemic. Although travel was prohibited
for most of the year, the Fund was still able to disburse five
transactions to new partners this year, two of which were
substantial investments (USD 10 million each) to Access Bank
Plc Nigeria and KCB Bank Kenya in the form of subordinated
debt. This will allow these PLIs to further strengthen their
capital structures and expand outreach to their substantial
MSME portfolios in these key markets. Accordingly, with this

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT
Credit Suisse Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.A.
5, rue Jean Monnet
L -2180 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Ernst & Young S.A.
35E, Avenue John F. Kennedy
L - 1855 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg
LEGAL ADVISERS
Linklaters LLP
35, Avenue John F. Kennedy
B.P. 1107
L -1855 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

1 https://www.worldbank.org/en/publication/africa-pulse
2 https://www.theafricareport.com/64063/african-banks-may-wait-til2024-to-return-to-pre- crisis-revenues-ifc/
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significant boost the Fund’s year-end outstanding loan portfolio
grew to a record level of USD 136 million (at historical cost)
from USD 123 million in 2019. While the Fund did not enter
any new economies (REGMIFA was invested in 19 countries at
year end 2020 and 2019), the Investment Manager continues
to evaluate tangible opportunities in new regions, such as
Ethiopia, Togo, Benin and Guinea.
HIGHLIGHTS IN 2020
As part of the 10-year anniversary since the Fund’s inception,
a strategy review was undertaken to assess the suitability and
the relevance of the Fund’s focus for the next 10 years, given
the many economic, social and political changes that occurred
in the SSA region over the first decade. While the mission of
the Fund has not fundamentally changed, the strategy related
to realizing the mission was adapted to better incorporate the
current and projected context in which the Fund works. The
main changes broadened the definitions of the mission and
of the target investees so that the Fund can also support low
and middle-income households (LMIHs) with primary goods and
services (education, off-grid solar, affordable housing, etc.) and
work with different types of financial intermediaries (e.g. holding
companies, larger commercial banks), in addition to microfinance
institutions and small and middle enterprises (SME) banks.
Another key development for the Fund was the further
strengthening of its liquidity and capital position, which was
realized by mobilizing another private investor for USD 1.5
million in Notes and an additional USD 24.4 million in C-shares
from BMZ / KfW. This ongoing interest for the Fund via the
public private partnership reflects the fact that not only does
the Fund support impact in key SSA markets but it is also seen
as a solid financial investment.
OUTLOOK FOR 2021
While the crisis is still not over and the road to recovery remains
uncertain and likely uneven across the region (the World Bank
is estimating a rebound in GDP growth to +2.1% in 2021
for Sub-Saharan Africa3), the rollout of vaccines globally and
ongoing economic support in the world’s largest economies
should ultimately benefit global trade and SSA’s role in it.
It is undeniable that the most vulnerable citizens in the SSA
region have been dealt a massive setback, making the Fund’s
role in supporting financial inclusivity and outreach even more
heightened. Taking into account the aforementioned context,
updated strategy and strong support, particularly from the
C-share investors, the Investment Manager plans to continue
to support existing and new PLIs with liquidity and strategic
subordinated debt, and accompany them with targeted Technical
Assistance. The focus will not only be on the traditional Tier 2
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and Tier 3 PLIs4 but also on other financial intermediaries that
support SMEs and LMIHs. Further geographic expansion may
be dependent on the Investment Manager’s ability to travel or
capacity to identify suitable local consultants to complement
online due diligences.
THE FUND’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Notwithstanding high uncertainty and potential for losses in
the year the Fund’s financial performance in 2020 allowed
it to serve the full target dividends for the A and B Share
Classes for the tenth year in a row. The Fund did experience a
loss of income, the consequence of an interest rate mismatch
between the Fund’s assets and liabilities, which was due to
the precipitous drop of LIBOR in the first half of the year,
as well as the change in the accounting method for upfront
fees (now amortized over the life of the loan, generating a
USD 0.8M deferred revenue). This resulted in the C-Shares
being served approximately 60% of their target dividends, all
of which were capitalized. While the Net Asset Value (NAV) of
C Shares as of year-end 2020 rose in absolute terms to USD
80,981,854 (2019: USD 56,683,511) due to the receipt of
USD 24,414,320 of additional capital, the retained earnings
position remained stable at a negative USD 5.7 million (2019:
negative USD 5.6 million).
FURTHER STRENGTHENED CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As mentioned, the Fund has already secured a significant
level of new C Shares and has strong leads to source further
C Shares from existing and new investors in the coming year.
These C shares would not only provide further support to the A
and B shareholders, but allow the Fund to leverage its capital
structure and increase its funding capacity and outreach. As
of year-end, the C Share NAV was 53.9%5 of the Gross Asset
Value (GAV) (2019: 38.8%), which continues to provide a
strong first loss buffer to the Fund.

3 https://www.worldbank.org/en/publication/africa-pulse
4 REGMIFA defines small (Tier 3) institutions as those with total assets
below USD 10 million, medium (Tier 2) institutions as those with total
assets between USD 10 and USD 30 million, and large (Tier 1) institutions
as those with total assets in excess of USD 30 million.
5 Following the change of Issue Document that was voted in June 2020,
the provisions relative to stage 1 and stage 2 loans are added back to the
NAV of the C-shares for the purpose of the calculation of this risk ratio.
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SOCIAL IMPACT IN 2020
Travel restrictions and volatile conditions prevented the
Investment Manager from sourcing many new Tier 2 and 3
PLIs or in some cases providing renewals to existing PLIs.
Deals with Tier 2 and 3 PLIs however still represent 40% of
the deals disbursed in 2020. The Fund’s investments in the 13
least developed countries (LDC, as defined by the UN) in which
it works in the region decreased to USD 57.8 million (2019:
USD 66.2 million), with the largest drops in Ghana, Ivory Coast
and DRC. However, the strong disbursements, particularly the
subordinated debts to the two large banks mentioned above,
ensured outreach remains strong. With ongoing recovery in
the region, the Fund should be able to increase its support to
smaller PLIs in these markets in 2021. In 2020, the REGMIFA
TA Facility focused on completing all of the projects under
donors’ commitments. In terms of KPIs, this translates into 3
projects completed during the year 2020 for a value of EUR
212,967 (121 projects completed from 2011 to date for a
total value of EUR 7 million). Additionally, the strategy that the
TAF Manager put in place over time, to consolidate the PLIs’
ownership of the TA projects, has enabled the TAF to collect
a total of EUR 304,800 in co-financing. This amount will
finance the 1st edition of the Technical Assistance Package 7
on Crisis Impact Mitigation (TAP-CIM), with a Digital Financial
Services (“DFS”) focus designed during the year 2020 in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The DFS are helping
to build the capacity of PLIs in responding to the crisis and
progressively implementing systems and frameworks not only
for business continuity but also expanding their reach to new
market segments. The Fund showed continuous support to the
mission of the TAF and from the 2019 income contributed USD
417,255 to recapitalize the TAF’s assets, which will fund the 2nd
edition of the TAP CIM to the benefit of 9 PLIs. In 2021, the
TAF is getting ready to have an expanded focus on supporting
PLIs better serve SMEs and LMIHs, to match the broadened
range of target investees and mission.

CONCLUDING REMARKS
2020 has been a year of many challenges, especially for the
target beneficiaries of the REGMIFA Fund. However in the face
of hardship, the Board is humbled not only by the incredible
level of resilience that it has witnessed from the partner
lending institutions of the Fund but above all by the resilience
of their clients: the women and men behind the micro, small
and medium enterprises in Sub-Saharan Africa. The Board
would like to thank REGMIFA’s investors, donors and service
providers for their continued support and commitment to the
Fund’s mission and especially the Investment Manager for their
incredible flexibility and well- thought-out strategy in managing
the crisis and continued efforts to further improve the Fund’s
processes and growth. In March 2021, we finally celebrated
the delayed 10th anniversary of the Fund’s launch in May 2010
“10 years of impact” and the launch of an updated strategy
for the 10 years to come. We now look forward to 2021 with
REGMIFA maintaining its position as a reliable funder to its
partner institutions with a strong focus on its mission.
The Board of Directors
May 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 (EXPRESSED IN USD)

NOTES

31/12/2020

31/12/2019

Loans to Partner Lending Institutions

ASSETS

4

125,699,380

108,274,941

Interest receivable on loans

4

2,663,818

2,945,965

Derivative financial instruments

5

2,424,283

4,607,248

1,033,984

4,217,304

Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

2,165

6,664

29,100,595

26,017,377

160,924,225

146,069,499

LIABILITIES
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial instruments

5

Accrued expenses

9.5

Other payables
Contribution to the technical assistance facility

11.3

104,419

-

5,954,317

1,579,538

674,558

555,927

404,554

84,423

599,017

1,079,842

Notes issued

6

15,782,746

19,824,294

Distribution payable to holders of redeemable shares

11

1,892,079

3,016,183

- holders of redeemable Class A shares

7

34,989,808

43,704,908

- holders of redeemable Class B shares

7

19,540,873

19,540,873

79,942,371

89,385,988

Net assets attributable to:

Total Liabilities
EQUITY
Share capital

7

Retained earnings
Total Equity attributable to holders of Class C shares
Total Liabilities and Equity
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86,729,110

62,314,790

(5,747,256)

(5,631,279)

80,981,854

56,683,511

160,924,225

146,069,499
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (EXPRESSED IN USD)

INCOME

NOTES

Interest income on loans
Interest income on bank deposits

2020

2019

12,018,521

14,100,619

255,035

354,844

Net realised loss on derivative financial instruments

(947,950)

(3,034,930)

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on derivative financial instruments

6,557,744)

944,328

(4,711,664)

(6,771,764)

5,776,272

(1,055,466)

(458,535)

3,691,890

51,748

40,623

5,425,683

8,270,144

(2,225,256)

Net realised foreign exchange loss on loans to Partner Lending
Institutions
Net change in unrealised foreign exchange gain/(loss) on loans to
Partner Lending Institutions
Net change in loan loss allowance

4

Other income
Total net investment income
EXPENSES
Management fees

9.1

(2,042,833)

Secretary fees

9.3

(235,774)

(94,773)

(119,783)

(142,935)
(202,892)

Legal and audit fees
Administration, custodian and domiciliation fees

9.4

(216,120)

Amortization of placement fees

14

(443,746)

-

Other administrative expenses

(85,264)

47,406

Director and IC member fees

(123,890)

(163,471)

(29,004)

(38,805)

(3,296,414)

(2,820,726)

2,129,269

5,449,418

Marketing and promotion expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating profit
Other net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

285,800

(76,070)

(654,071)

(173,877)

(6,788)

(23,346)

1,754,210

5,176,125

11.3

(1,892,079)

(3,016,183)

Interest expense on notes
Bank charges
Profit before performance allocation
Distribution to holders of redeemable shares
Contribution to the technical assistance facility

11.3

-

(643,978)

Investment Manager incentive bonus

9.2, 11.3

-

(109,476)

Reversal of the Investment Manager incentive bonus 2019

9.2, 11.3

21,895

Profit/(loss) before tax
Taxation
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
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(115,974)

1,406,488

-

-

(115,974)

1,406,488

-

-

(115,974)

1,406,488
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (EXPRESSED IN USD)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NOTES

Profit/(loss) before tax

2020

2019

(115,974)

1,406,488

(12,018,521)

(14,100,619)

654,071

173,877

Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Interest income on loans to Partner Lending Institutions
Interest expense on notes
Distribution to holders of redeemable shares

11.3

1,892,079

3,016,183

Contribution to the technical assistance facility

11.3

-

643,978

9.2, 11.3

-

109,476

(21,895)

-

Investment Manager incentive bonus
Reversal of the Investment Manager incentive bonus 2019
Net change in unrealised foreign exchange loss on
loans to Partner Lending Institutions

(5,776,272)

Net change in unrealised (gain)/loss on derivative
financial instruments

1,055,466

6,557,744

(944,328)

458,535

(3,691,890)

(8,370,233)

(12,331,369)

Net decrease/(increase) in other receivables and
prepaid expenses

3,187,819

(3,124,004)

Net increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses and
other payables

473,672

(1,042,240)

(4,708,742)

(16,497,613)

(12,106,702)

(2,039,792)

12,300,668

14,908,062

193,966

12,868,270

Net change in loans loss allowance

4

Working capital adjustments:

Net cash flows used in operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net (increase)/decrease in loans to Partner Lending Institutions
Interest received on loans to Partner Lending Institutions
Cash flows from investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

7, 8

24,414,320

16,082,160

Payments on redemption of shares

8

(8,715,100)

(21,611,667)

Proceeds from issue of notes

8

1,282,746

17,200,000

Payments on redemption of notes

8

(5,324,294)

(2,624,294)

Distribution paid to holders of redeemable shares

8

(3,016,183)

(2,740,447)

Contribution paid from the technical assistance facility

8

(480,825)

(47,430)

Interest paid on notes

6

(667,089)

(667,089)

Cash flows from financing activities

7,493,575

6,097,463

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

2,978,799

2,468,120

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

26,017,377

23,549,257

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

28,996,176

26,017,377
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE SHARES (CLASS A AND CLASS B)
AND IN EQUITY (CLASS C)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (EXPRESSED IN USD)

NOTES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

CLASS A

CLASS B

CLASS C

37,704,908

31,070,380

55,277,023

Issuance of shares

7

6,000,000

10,082,160

-

Redemption of shares

7

-

(21,611,667)

-

Allocation of net income and capital gains and losses
Distribution payable to holders of redeemable Class A and
Class B shares

11.3

1,740,634

1,275,549

1,406,488

11

(1,740,634)

(1,275,549)

-

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
Issuance of shares
Redemption of shares
Allocation of net income and capital gains and losses
Distribution payable to holders of redeemable Class A and
Class B shares
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

39

43,704,908

19,540,873

56,683,511

7

-

-

24,414,320

7

(8,715,100)

-

-

11.3

1,168,641

723,438

(115,977)

11

(1,168,641)

(723,438)

-

34,989,808

19,540,873

80,981,854
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 (EXPRESSED IN USD)

1.2. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES
The Fund seeks to invest in a balanced portfolio of regulated
and/or non-regulated micro finance institutions and/or
local commercial banks and/or other financial institutions,
established in Sub-Saharan African countries providing funding
to MSMEs and LMIHs (each a PLI).

NOTE 1
DESCRIPTION

1.1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Regional MSME Investment Fund for Sub-Saharan Africa S.A.,
SICAV-SIF (the “Fund”) is a closed-ended investment company
with variable capital (société d’investissement à capital
variable), incorporated as a public limited company (société
anonyme) on 1 December 2009, and organized under the
laws of Luxembourg as a specialized investment fund (fonds
d’investissement spécialisé).

NOTE 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Fund’s financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of
the IASB as adopted by the European Union (“EU”).

The Fund is registered pursuant the law of 13 February 2007
on specialized investment funds (the “SIF Law”).
The Fund was set up for an unlimited duration.
The Fund’s financial year starts on 1 January and ends 31
December of each year.
The Articles of Incorporation of the Fund (“Articles”) were
published in Mémorial C, Recueil des Sociétés et Associations.
The Fund is registered with the Luxembourg Company Register
under Number B 150.766.

2.2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, applying the historical cost convention, except
for the derivative financial instruments that have been
measured at fair value through profit and loss.

The registered office of the Fund is established in Luxembourg,
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and its address is set at 5, rue
Jean Monnet L-2180 Luxembourg.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
as adopted by the EU requires the Board of Directors to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Board
of Directors believes that the estimates utilized in preparing
its financial statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual
results could differ from these estimates and the differences
may be material to the financial statements. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

The mission of the Fund is to build a unique public private
partnership between donors, development finance institutions
and international finance institutions, private investors and
African stakeholders to foster economic development and
prosperity in Sub-Saharan Africa through the provision of
demand-oriented financing to qualified and, to the extent
necessary, technically supported Partner Lending Institutions
(“PLIs”) serving micro, small and medium sized enterprises
(“MSMEs”) and low and middle income households («LMIHs»).

The Fund presents its statement of financial position in order of
liquidity. An analysis in respect of recovery or settlement within 12
months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months
after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 12.

The Fund is exempt from the scope of the Luxembourg
Alternative Investment Fund Managers Law (the “AIFM Law”)
of 12 July 2013 pursuant to article 2(2) thereof. The exemption
is based on the fact that more than 50% of the members of the
Board as well as of the members of the Investment Committee,
respectively, shall be representatives of proposed by Public
Institutions that may be subsumed under the entities listed in
article 2(2) of the AIFM Law.

Except as described below, the accounting policies used to
prepare these financial statements are consistent with those
applied for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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2.2.1 NEW IFRS STANDARD OR AMENDMENTS AND
POTENTIAL IMPACTS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year, except for the following amendments
to IFRS effective for the Fund as of 1 January 2020. For the
avoidance of doubt, only the new standards, amendments to
standards and IFRIC which may have an effect on the Fund’s
financial statements are mentioned below:
Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards
This amendment revises the definitions of an asset and a
liability and provide a new guidance on measurement and
derecognition, presentation and disclosure.
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
These amendments clarify the definition of “material” and
align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and
the standards themselves.
Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform
The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainty caused by the interbank offered rates reform.
In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships, which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
These amendments have no material impact on the Fund’s
financial position or performance.

2.2.2. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR BEGINNING 1 JANUARY 2020 (INCLUDING THOSE PENDING EU ENDORSEMENT)
AND NOT EARLY ADOPTED BY THE FUND AS FAR AS
PERMITTED
The Fund has also decided not to early adopt the standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations of the IFRIC
which have been published but are not applicable for the
year ending 31 December 2020. The Fund will adopt these
standards on the date of their effective application and when
they will be approved by the European Union. For the avoidance
of doubt, only the standards, amendments to standards
and IFRIC which may have an effect on the Fund’s financial
statements are mentioned below:
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 January 2022
and are not expected to have material impact on the Fund’s
financial position or performance.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets
Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7, IFRS 4, IFRS 16 and IAS 39:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2
These amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark,
including its replacement with alternative benchmark rates. It
is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and is not expected to have impact on the Fund’s financial
position or performance.
Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
This amendment provides a more general approach to
the classification of liabilities under IAS 1 based on the
contractual arrangements in place at the reporting date. It
only affects the presentation of liabilities in the statement
of financial position, is effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and is not expected to have impact on
the Fund’s financial position or performance.

2.3. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
2.3.1. FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY
The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates. The Fund’s majority of
returns are US Dollar (USD) based, the capital is raised in USD
and the performance is evaluated and its liquidity is managed
in USD. Therefore, the Fund concludes that the USD is its
functional currency.
The Fund’s presentation currency is the USD.

2.3.2. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Foreign currency transactions are translated, in accordance
with IAS 21, at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.
Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than in
USD are translated into USD at the exchange rate prevailing at
the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of transactions
at rates different from those at the date of the transaction, and
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unrealized foreign exchange differences on unsettled foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities, are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income.

financial instruments in a liability position, when the fair value
is negative.
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
This category includes all financial liabilities other than those
measured at FVPL. The Fund includes in this category accrued
expenses, other payables, contributions to the technical
assistance facility, notes issued, distributions to holders of
redeemable shares and net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable shares.

2.4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2.4.1. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Fund classifies its financial assets as measured at
amortized cost or at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”)
on the basis of:
The business model for managing the financial assets; and
The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

2.4.3. RECOGNITION
The Fund recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans to PLIs are
recognized when cash is advanced to the PLIs.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it is held within
a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The Fund includes in this category the loans to
Partner Lending Institutions (PLIs), interest receivable on loans,
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

2.4.4. INITIAL MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded
in the statement of financial position at fair value. All
transaction costs for such instruments are recognized directly
in the statement of comprehensive income. Loans to PLIs are
recognized net of upfront fees.

Financial assets measured at FVPL
A financial asset is measured at FVPL if:
Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; or
It is not held within a business model whose objective is
either to collect contractual cash flows or to both collect
contractual cash flows and sell; or
At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured
at FVPL when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets and liabilities, other than those classified as at
FVPL, are measured initially at their fair value plus any directly
attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.
Loans to PLIs are measured initially at the net disbursed amount
which is the fair value of the cash given to originate the loan,
including any transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue.

The Fund includes in this category derivative financial instruments
in an asset position, when the fair value is positive.

2.4.5. SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
After initial measurement, the Fund measures financial
instruments which are classified as at FVPL at fair value.

2.4.2. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Fund classifies its financial liabilities as measured at
amortized cost or measured at FVPL.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments
are recorded in ‘Net gain/(loss) on derivative financial instruments’
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities measured at FVPL
A financial liability is measured at FVPL if it meets the definition
of held for trading. The Fund includes in the category derivative

Financial assets in the form of debt instruments are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in
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profit or loss when the debt instruments are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at FVPL,
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the
amortization process.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating and recognizing the interest income or interest
expense in profit or loss over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortized cost of the financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instruments, but does not consider expected credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Upfront fees on loans to PLIs are
amortized over the life of the underlying instrument under the
effective interest rate method.

2.4.6. DE-RECOGNITION
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired, or the Fund has transferred substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset.
The Fund de-recognizes a financial liability when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

2.4.7. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT AMORTIZED COST
The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with the debt instruments measured
at amortised cost, including loans to PLIs.
The impairment model applies to all financial assets measured
at amortised cost and requires the recognition of loan loss
allowance based on expected credit losses (ECL).
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At each reporting date, the Fund shall measure the loss
allowance on loans to PLIs and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund shall
measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.
The Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using
probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD”) and
loss given default (“LGD”). The directors consider both historical
analysis and forward looking information in determining any
expected credit loss based on the models used.
Significant financial difficulties of a debtor, probability that a
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and
default in payments are all considered indicators that a loss
allowance may be required.
If the credit risk increases to the point that it is considered to
be credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based
on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowance.
Regardless of the change in credit rates, if any contractual
payment is more than 30 days past due or a counterparty
credit rating which has fallen below the lowest rating of the
“Investment Grade” category. Any contractual payment which
is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.
The ECLs are calculated on an individual basis.

2.5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits in banks that
are readily fixed rate to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Fund may engage, for the proportion of its portfolio
which is invested in a currency other than USD, in currency
hedging operations with a view to manage exposures to foreign
currency risk. These hedging operations are assimilated as
economic hedging. The Fund does not apply hedge accounting
and the derivative financial instruments are classified as held
for trading..
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2.7. NOTES ISSUED
Notes issued are recognized initially at fair value including
any transaction costs that are directly attributable to their
acquisition or issue. Subsequently, they are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. If
redemption is expected in one year or less, notes issued are
considered as current liabilities.

2.9. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSES
Interest income and expenses are recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments using the effective interest method.

2.10. EXPENSES
Expenses, including management fees, are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis.

2.8. SHARES ISSUED
2.11. TAXATION
The Fund is not subject to any tax. In accordance with the
“Règlement grand-ducal” dated 14 July 2010, the Fund is
exempted from the subscription tax since 23 May 2011.

2.8.1. CLASS A AND CLASS B SHARES
The Class A and Class B shares are redeemable at the maturity
of the relevant tranches of classes of shares and are classified
as financial liabilities. The liabilities arising from these shares
are carried at the redemption amount being the net asset value
calculated in accordance with the Issue Document.

PLIs may be subject to withholding tax payable on the interest
expense made to the Fund. However, the responsibility of such
withholding tax payment lies with the PLIs at local level and has
thus no impact to the financial statements of the Fund.

2.8.2. CLASS C SHARES
The Class C shares are classified as equity instruments for the
following reasons:
the shares entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s
net assets in the event of the Fund’s liquidation;
the shares are in the class of instruments that is subordinate
to all other classes of instruments;
all shares in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all
other classes of instrument have identical features;
the shares do not include any contractual obligation to deliver
cash or another financial asset other than the holder’s rights
to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets;
the total expected cash flows attributable to the shares over
the life of the instrument are based substantially on the
profit or loss, the change in the recognized net assets or the
change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognized
net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument.

NOTE 3
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the Fund’s financial statements requires
the Board of Directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in future periods. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The net allocation of income and capital gains and losses on
Class C shares are accounted for as an increase or a decrease
of retained earnings. The Fund continuously assesses the
classification of Class C shares. If Class C shares cease to
have all the features, or meet all the conditions as set out,
to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as
financial liabilities and measure them at fair value at the date
of reclassification.

3.1. CLASSIFICATION OF DEBT INSTRUMENTS
IFRS 9 requires that the classification of debt instruments is
determined based on the business models that the Fund has in
place for managing those assets.
There are three business models available under IFRS 9:
“Hold to collect” model;
“Hold to collect and sell” model;
Models that do not meet the criteria of either “Hold to collect»
or «Hold to collect and sell’’.
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The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Investment
Manager, determines the business model based on relevant
evidence including quantitative factors (e.g., the expected
frequency and volume of sales) and qualitative factors such as:
how the performance of the business model and the financial
assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to key management personnel;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model
and the financial assets held within that business model, in
particular, the way in which those risks are managed; and
how managers of the business are compensated (e.g.,
whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).
For those assets that are not held for trading or managed on a
fair value basis, such as the loans to PLIs, a further assessment
has been undertaken of the contractual cash flows that were
in place at the time of their origination to determine if they are
consistent with those of a basic lending arrangement. That
is, whether they have cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI). Where the cash flows are
consistent with SPPI, assets are classified at amortized cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

In determining ECL, the directors are required to exercise
judgement in defining what is considered to be a significant
increase in credit risk and in making assumptions and estimates
to incorporate relevant information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of economic conditions. The PD,
LGD and EAD models which support these determinations
are reviewed regularly in light of differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
The exercise of judgement in making estimations requires
the use of assumptions which are highly subjective and
very sensitive to the risk factors, in particular to changes in
economic and credit conditions across a number of sectors and
geographical areas.

As the debt instruments of the Fund have SPPI characteristics
and are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold them to collect contractual cash flows (“Hold to collect”
model), the Directors concluded that the debt portfolio meets
the conditions to be classified at amortized cost.

3.3. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 – Valuations based on quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – Valuations based on quoted prices in markets
that are not active or for which all significant inputs are
observable, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices); and
Level 3 – Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable
and significant to the overall fair value measurement.

3.2. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON DEBT INSTRUMENTS
Expected credit losses (“ECL”) are determined for debt
instruments that are classified at amortized cost.

Where the fair values of financial instruments cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical
models.

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 requires
judgement, in particular the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.
The Fund’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models
with a number of underlying assumptions. The significant
judgements and estimates in determining ECL include:
the Fund’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk; and
the development of ECL models, including the choice of
inputs relating to macroeconomic variables.
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The input to these models is taken from observable market
data where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The
determination of the adequate valuation method and of
underlying assumptions requires significant estimation.
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NOTE 4
LOANS TO PARTNER LENDING INSTITUTIONS

31/12/2020

31/12/2019

Gross loans to PLIs

136,524,843

118,641,869

Cumulated loan loss allowance

(10,825,463)

(10,366,928)

Carrying value of loans to PLIs (excluding interests)

125,699,380

108,274,941

2,224,918

2,737,285

Accrued interests
Interests receivable

438,899

208,680

Carrying value of of loans to PLIs (including interests)

128,363,197

111,220,906

Fair value of loans to PLIs

131,935,976

125,433,444

31/12/2019

31/12/2019

10,366,928

14,058,818

Movements in the accumulated impairment losses on loans to PLIs were as follows:

Cumulated loan loss allowance as at opening
Additional/(reversal) of impairment losses recognised during the year
Amount written off during the year as uncollectible
Cumulated loan loss allowance as at closing

The fair value of loans is calculated by using valuation
techniques based on non-observable data in emerging markets
and corresponds to level 3 of IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy. The
estimated fair value of loans is based on a discounted cash
flow model taking into account the impact from the evolution
of (1) foreign exchange rates, (2) changes in local risk-free
yield curves (i.e. T-bills and T-bonds) and (3) changes in the
internal credit rating on each loan since disbursement date.
The impact from the evolution of (1) foreign exchange rates
and (2) changes in local yield curves (i.e. T-bills and T-bonds)
is estimated based on the valuation of derivatives provided
by the Fund’s hedge counterparties. Individual discount rates
for each loan are based on an estimation of the average
reference rate during the remaining lifetime of each loan and
a market-based margin taking into account changes in country
risk, credit risk, institutional status (bank, non-bank financial
institution, cooperative, NGO) and remaining maturity since the
disbursement date of each loan.

601,395

354,438

(142,860)

(4,046,028)

10,825,463

10,366,928

The table hereafter shows the credit quality and maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Bank’s internal credit
rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no transfers
into and out of level 3 fair value measurement.
As at 31 December 2020, the portion of gross loans to PLIs
falling due within one year amounts to USD 39,371,867 (2019:
USD 52,072,977).
The table hereafter shows the credit quality and maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Bank’s internal credit
rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances.
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CREDIT RATING

STAGE 1

A

9,901,356

-

-

9,901,356

BBB+

2,679,706

8,948,314

-

11,628,020

BBB

15,725,496

-

-

15,725,496

BBB-

18,025,949

5,562,436

-

23,588,385

9,652,978

9,327,888

-

18,980,866

20,403,430

10,514,353

-

30,917,783
10,077,524

BB+
BB
BB-

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

CARRYING VALUE
31/12/2020

3,301,927

6,775,597

-

B+

-

1,759,002

-

1,759,002

B

-

-

10,148,995

10,148,995

C

-

-

2,122,157

2,122,157

D

-

-

1,675,259

1,675,259

79,690,842

42,887,590

13,946,411

136,524,843

STAGE 1

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

CARRYING VALUE
31/12/2019

Grand Total

CURRENT CREDIT RATING
BBB+
BBB

10,619,180

-

-

10,619,180

6,599,149

-

-

6,599,149

BBB-

11,331,241

6,029,336

-

17,360,577

BB+

18,343,975

18,111,471

-

36,455,446

BB

18,949,662

2,000,000

-

20,949,662

BB-

6,998,436

8,547,360

-

15,545,796

B+

1,683,750

1,819,298

-

3,503,048

-

-

4,552,425

4,552,425

B
C

-

-

1,381,165

1,381,165

D

-

-

1,675,420

1,675,420

74,525,393

36,507,466

7,609,010

118,641,869

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

TOTAL

Grand Total

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT

STAGE 1

As at 1 January 2020

74,525,393

36,507,466

7,609,010

118,641,869

New assets purchased

49,346,582

22,648,612

865,568

72,860,762
(54,977,788)

(30,869,101)

(22,698,517)

(1,410,170)

Transfers to Stage 1

Assets derecognized or matured*

4,147,474

(4,147,474)

-

-

Transfers to Stage 2

(16,765,915)

16,765,915

-

-

Transfers to Stage 3
At 31 December 2020

(693,591)

(6,188,412)

6,882,003

-

79,690,842

42,887,590

13,946,411

136,524,843
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GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT

STAGE 1

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

As at 1 January 2019

63,395,854

43,627,979

10,633,709

117,657,542

New assets purchased

41,107,763

9,562,773

-

50,670,536

(24,953,291)

(18,671,160)

(2,015,729)

(45,640,181)

3,771,626

(3,771,626)

-

-

Assets derecognized or matured*
Transfers to Stage 1

TOTAL

Transfers to Stage 2

(7,179,651)

7,179,651

-

-

Transfers to Stage 3

(1,616,907)

(1,420,151)

3,037,058

-

Amounts written off

-

-

(4,046,028)

(4,046,028)

74,525,393

36,507,466

7,609,010

118,641,869

At 31 December 2019

* excluding write-offs
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECLs is as follows:
ECLS

STAGE 1

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

TOTAL

As at 1 January 2020

2,886,789

2,456,425

5,023,714

10,366,928

832,823

1,031,899

127,845

1,992,567

(1,169,447)

(893,556)

-

(2,063,003)

Transfers to Stage 1

402,435

(402,435)

-

-

Transfers to Stage 2

(462,623)

462,623

-

-

Transfers to Stage 3

(23,507)

(397,591)

421,098

-

Changes in credit risk on assets
transferred between stages during the year

(338,759)

(90,139)

2,165,839

1,736,941

Other changes in credit risk, not triggering a
transfer between stages

(754,906)

(482,121)

(113,803)

(1,350,830)

New assets purchased
Assets derecognized or matured*

-

-

142,860

142,860

At 31 December 2020

Amounts written off

1,372,805

1,685,105

7,767,553

10,825,463

ECLS

STAGE 1

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

TOTAL

As at 1 January 2019

2,072,508

3,971,758

8,014,552

14,058,818

New assets purchased

1,341,789

885,470

-

2,227,259

Assets derecognized or matured*

(514,395)

(548,179)

(197,444)

(1,260,018)

Transfers to Stage 1

594,123

(594,123)

-

-

Transfers to Stage 2

(197,742)

197,742

-

-

(92,932)

(55,074)

148,006

-

Changes in credit risk on assets
transferred between stages during the year

Transfers to Stage 3

(236,262)

(6,807)

1,435,814

1,192,745

Other changes in credit risk, not triggering a
transfer between stages

(80,300)

(1,394,362)

(331,186)

(1,805,848)

-

-

(4,046,028)

(4,046,028)

2,886,789

2,456,425

5,023,714

10,366,928

Amounts written off
At 31 December 2019

* excluding write-offs
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ECLS

STAGE 1

STAGE 2

STAGE 3

TOTAL
14,058,818

As at 1 January 2019

2,072,508

3,971,758

8,014,552

New assets purchased

1,341,789

885,470

-

2,227,259

Assets derecognized or matured*

(514,395)

(548,179)

(197,444)

(1,260,018)

Transfers to Stage 1

594,123

(594,123)

-

-

Transfers to Stage 2

(197,742)

197,742

-

-

Transfers to Stage 3

(92,932)

(55,074)

148,006

-

Changes in credit risk on assets
transferred between stages during the year

(236,262)

(6,807)

1,435,814

1,192,745

Other changes in credit risk, not triggering a
transfer between stages

(80,300)

(1,394,362)

(331,186)

(1,805,848)

-

-

(4,046,028)

(4,046,028)

2,886,789

2,456,425

5,023,714

10,366,928

Amounts written off
At 31 December 2019

* excluding write-offs

NOTE 5
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
As part of its asset and liability management, the Fund uses
forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swaps
for the proportion of its loan portfolio which is invested in
currencies other than USD in order to simultaneously reduce
its exposure to foreign exchange risk.
The notional amounts of certain types of derivative financial
instrument (e.g. futures, swaps and forward contracts) provide
a basis for comparison with instruments recognized on the
statement of financial position, but they do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and therefore do not indicate the
Fund’s exposure to credit or market price risk. These derivative
instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities)
as a result of fluctuations in market prices, market interest rates
or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.
The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative
financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favorable or unfavorable, and thus the aggregate fair
value of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.
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The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross
currency swaps are calculated by reference to current exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity and risk profiles and
so involved valuation techniques where all the model inputs
are observable (either directly or indirectly) in the market. It
corresponds to level 2 of the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy. The
Fund does not apply hedge accounting and therefore the fair
value of such derivative financial instruments might result in a
mismatch with the value of the related financial assets recognized
at amortized cost. This effect is unrealized and temporary.
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value
measurements.

5.1. SWAP CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2020, the Fund holds 78 cross currency
swaps (2019: 90) with notional amount of USD 91,293,081
(2019: USD 101,735,236), which have a positive fair value of
USD 2,368,950 and a negative fair value of USD 5,810,474
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: a positive fair value of USD
4,585,521 and a negative fair value of USD 1,579,538).
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5.2. FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2020, the Fund has the following forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding:
CURRENCY
PURCHASED

CURRENCY
SOLD

AMOUNT
PURCHASED

AMOUNT
SOLD

MATURITY
DATE

UNREALISED
GAIN

USD

RWF

1,210,205

1,215,204,100

28/09/2021

55,333

USD

EUR

162,452

141,140

15/06/2022

(12,891)

USD

EUR

159,234

137,270

15/06/2023

(12,810)

USD

EUR

4,549

3,932

15/12/2022

(356)

USD

EUR

165,718

145,049

15/06/2021

(12,952)

USD

KES

1,778,518

198,438,139

04/01/2021

(41,426)

USD

XOF

184,572

109,104,159

10/01/2021

(18,672)

USD

UGX

82,552

324,271,500

06/05/2021

(3,391)
(9,698)

USD

ZMW

370,486

8,536,000

10/05/2021

USD

EUR

9,011

7,863

15/12/2021

(715)

USD

UGX

121,259

464,422,500

24/06/2021

(192)

USD

XOF

574,947

327,978,500

31/05/2021

(30,740)
(88,510)

As at 31 December 2019, the Fund has the following forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding:
CURRENCY
PURCHASED

CURRENCY
SOLD

AMOUNT
PURCHASED

AMOUNT
SOLD

MATURITY
DATE

USD

RWF

1,210,205

1,215,204,100

28/09/2021

USD

ZMW

400,749

5,670,600

10/01/2020

UNREALISED
GAIN
18,800
2,927
21,727
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NOTE 6
NOTES ISSUED

NOTE 7
SHARE CAPITAL AND NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE CLASS A AND
CLASS B SHARES

The Fund may from time to time issue notes in the form of
subordinated notes (“Subordinated Notes”) and senior notes
(“Senior Notes”) (together the “Notes”).

The Fund may issue various classes of shares (each a “Class”),
each evidencing a different level of risk.

The Notes may be issued in successive series, each with its
own duration and coupon determined at the discretion of the
Board of Directors at the time the relevant series of Notes is
being placed:
The entitlements of holders of Senior Notes to receive interest
payments and repayments of principal rank junior to other
creditors of the Fund but senior to all Shareholder payment
entitlements and senior to all payment entitlements of holders
of Subordinated Notes.
The entitlements of holders of Subordinated Notes to receive
interest payments and principal repayments rank junior to other
creditors of the Fund and junior to all payment entitlements of
holders of Senior Notes but senior to all Shareholder payment
entitlements.
As at 31 December 2020, the Notes issued by the Fund amount
to USD 15,782,746 (2019: USD 19,824,294) and are fully drawn.
The portion of Notes issued having a maturity within one year
amounts to USD 2,700,000 as of 31 December 2020 (2019:
USD 5,324,294). The notes generated interest for an amount of
USD 654,070 (2019: USD 173,877).

The first loss Class C shares (“Class C Shares”), which may be
issued in successive series, bear all unrealized/realized capital
losses of the Fund (e.g. foreign exchange loss, deterioration in
credit quality or defaults with respect to the investments of the
Fund) until the Net Asset Value (“NAV”) of Class C Shares has
been fully depleted. Write backs on unrealized investments
and any realized or unrealized capital gains shall be allocated
to the Class C Shares in the order of priority as detailed in
Note 10. The Class C Shareholders’ dividend entitlements
rank junior to the dividend entitlements of the Class A and
Class B Shareholders as per the waterfall model detailed in
Note 10. The NAV of all C Shares must represent at least
33% of the total assets of the Fund at all times.
The mezzanine Class B shares (“Class B Shares“), which
may be issued in successive series, bear unrealized/realized
capital losses of the Fund only if the NAV of the Class C
Shares has been reduced to zero. Write backs on unrealized
investments and any realized or unrealized capital gains shall
be allocated to the Class B Shares in the order of priority
as detailed in Note 10. The Class B Shareholders’ dividend
entitlements rank senior to the dividend entitlements of the
Class C Shareholders but junior to the dividend entitlements
of the Class A Shareholders as per the waterfall model
detailed in Note 10. The sum of the NAVs of the C Shares
and the B Shares must represent at least 50% of the total
assets of the Fund at all times.
The senior Class A shares (“Class A Shares”), which may be
issued in successive series, are insulated against unrealized/
realized capital losses of the Fund, bearing such losses only
if the NAV of both the Class C Shares and the Class B
Shares has been reduced to zero. Write backs on unrealized
investments and any realized or unrealized capital gains shall
be allocated to the Class A Shares in the order of priority
as detailed in Note 10. The Class A Shareholders’ dividend
entitlements rank senior to the dividend entitlements of the
Class B and Class C Shareholders as per the waterfall model
detailed in Note 10.
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As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding and uncalled commitments are as follows:
Senior Class A
Shares
As at 31 December 2020
Total outstanding commitment (USD)
Total outstanding commitment (EUR)*

Mezzanine Class B
Shares

First Loss Class C
Shares

in USD

in USD

in USD

23,000,022

19,540,873

86,729,110

11,989,786

-

Amount called (USD)

(23,000,022)

(19,540,873)

-

Amount called (EUR)*

(11,989,786)

-

(86,729,110)

Uncalled commitment (USD)

-

-

-

Uncalled commitment (EUR)*

-

-

-

* Called commitment amounts denominated in EUR are translated into USD at the exchange rate prevailing as of the subscription date. Uncalled
commitment amounts denominated in EUR are translated into USD at the exchange rate prevailing as of the statement of financial position date.

In December 2020 a total amount of USD 24,414,320 was subscribed in C-Shares.
In December 2020 a total amount of USD 8,715,100 was redeemed in A-Shares.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding and uncalled commitments are as follows
Senior Class A
Shares
As at 31 December 2019

Mezzanine Class B
Shares

First Loss Class C
Shares
in USD

in USD

in USD

Total outstanding commitment (USD)

29,715,122

19,540,873

-

Total outstanding commitment (EUR)*

13,989,786

-

62,314,790

Amount called (USD)

(29,715,122)

(19,540,873)

-

Amount called (EUR)*

(13,989,786)

-

(62,314,790)

6,000,000

10,000,000

-

-

-

-

Uncalled commitment (USD)
Uncalled commitment (EUR)*

* Called commitment amounts denominated in EUR are translated into USD at the exchange rate prevailing as of the subscription date. Uncalled
commitment amounts denominated in EUR are translated into USD at the exchange rate prevailing as of the statement of financial position date.

The total outstanding commitment amounts presented above
may decrease from one year to another following either the
redemption of certain tranches of Class A and Class B shares
or the maturity of the uncalled commitment, therefore considered as no longer outstanding.
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NOTE 8
RECONCILIATION OF FINANCING LIABILITIES

1 January
2020
Bank overdraft

Cash
flows

Non-cash
flows

31 December
2020

-

104,419*

*

104,419

Contribution from the technical assistance facility

1,079,842

(480,825)

-

599,017

Distribution payable to holders
of redeemable shares

3,016,183

(3,016,183)

1,892,079

1,892,079

19,824,294

(4,041,548)

-

15,782,746

holders of redeemable Class A shares

43,704,908

(8,715,100)

-

34,989,808

holders of redeemable Class B shares

19,540,873

-

-

19,540,873

Notes issued
Net assets attributable to:

* As of 31 December 2020, the bank overdraft on the cash account in EUR is explained by a slight delay between the payment from a PLI
and the settlement of the related hedge instrument.

1 January
2019
Contribution from the technical assistance facility

Cash
flows

Non-cash
flows

31 December
2019
1,079,842

483,294

(47,430)

643,978

Distribution payable to holders of redeemable shares

2,740,447

(2,740,447)

3,016,183

3,016,183

Notes issued

5,248,588

14,575,706

-

19,824,294

Net assets attributable to:
holders of redeemable Class A shares

37,704,908

6,000,000

-

43,704,908

holders of redeemable Class B shares

31,070,380

(11,529,507)

-

19,540,873

54

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9
EXPENSES

9.3. SECRETARY FEES
The secretary fees are paid on a monthly basis upon receipt of
the invoice.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the secretary fees
amount to USD 235,774 (2019: USD 94,773).

9.1. FUND MANAGEMENT FEES
In consideration for its services to be provided to the Fund, the
Investment Manager is entitled to a management fee payable
by the Fund which shall be the aggregate of:

9.4. ADMINISTRATION, CUSTODIAN AND
DOMICILIATION FEES
The Fund pays an administration fee to Credit Suisse Fund
Services (Luxembourg) S.A., which is based on the total net
assets including the aggregate issue amount of the Notes
issued by the Fund in accordance with the following scale,
payable quarterly:
0.10% per annum on the first amount of USD 100 million,
0.08% per annum on the next amount of USD 100 million,
0.04% per annum on the amount above USD 200 million.

(i) a percentage of the outstanding capital invested by the Fund
(“Invested Capital”) in PLI Investments as at the end of any
calendar month determined as follows:
2% per annum for the first USD 50 million of Invested Capital
invested in PLI Investments at the end of such calendar
month; plus
1.75% per annum for the amount of Invested Capital
invested in PLI Investments at the end of such calendar
month exceeding USD 50 million up to the amount of USD
100 million; plus
1.50% per annum for the amount of Invested Capital
invested in PLI Investments at the end of such calendar
month exceeding USD 100 million up to the amount of USD
200 million; plus
1.25% per annum for the amount of Invested Capital
invested in PLI Investments at the end of such calendar
month exceeding USD 200 million; and

A minimal amount of USD 60,000 of administration fee is
applied per annum.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the administration fee
amounts to USD 142,528 (2019: USD 132,232).
The Fund pays a custodian fee to Credit Suisse (Luxembourg)
S.A., which is based on the total net assets including the
aggregate issue amount of the Notes issued by the Fund in
accordance with the following scale, payable quarterly:
0.03% per annum on the first amount of USD 100 million,
0.02% per annum on the next amount above USD 100 million.

(ii) 0.2% per annum of the amount of Invested Capital invested
in Investments other than PLI investments at the end of such
calendar month.

A minimal amount of USD 20,000 of custodian fee is applied
per annum.

The Fund management fee amounted to USD 2,042,833 for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: USD 2,225,256).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the custodian fee
amount to USD 43,592 (2019: USD 40,660).

9.2. INVESTMENT MANAGER INCENTIVE BONUS
Depending on the performance of the Fund and the attainment
of certain performance targets by each Class of Shares
determined by the Board of Directors (as detailed in the
waterfall allocation, Note 11.3), the Investment Manager might
be entitled to additional performance- based remuneration
(“Investment Manager Incentive Bonus”), calculated as a
percentage of the year-to-date amount remaining available
for allocation of the Income Waterfall, as defined in Note 10.

The Fund pays an annual domiciliation fee to Credit Suisse Fund
Services (Luxembourg) S.A. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the domiciliation fee amounts to USD 15,000 (2019: USD
15,000).
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the registrar and the
compliance monitoring fees amount to USD 15,000 (2019: USD
15,000).

The Investment Manager Incentive Bonus accrued for as
at 31 December 2020 amounted to a negative amount
of USD 21,895 (2019: USD 109,476), corresponding to a
reversal of the 2019 residual. No amount was available for the
Investment Manager Incentive Bonus in 2020.

9.5. ACCRUED EXPENSES
As at 31 December 2020, the accrued expenses mainly relate
to Fund management fees and direct operating expenses and
amount to USD 674,558 (2019: USD 555,927).
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NOTE 10
ALLOCATION AND DISTRIBUTION WATERFALLS

At each date on which a net asset value (“NAV”) calculation is
made (“NAV Calculation Date”), the year-to-date cumulative net
income (“Net Income”) of the Fund for the relevant calendar year
is determined. The Net Income equals the sum of (i) the Fund’s
cumulative year-to-date income (received and/or accrued) in
the relevant calendar year less the year-to-date cumulative Fund
Expenses (including, but not limited to, operating expenses and
Management Fees) for the calendar year, plus (ii) any year-todate interest payments on the Notes for the calendar year. For
the purposes of this computation: (i) all realized and unrealized
(i.e. accrued) interest owed to the Fund are included in the Fund’s
Net Income (if any interest is not received by the Fund or if
previously accrued interest is not paid to the Fund, such amounts
come in deduction of the Fund’s Net Income) and (ii) the portion
of the value of any related derivative financial instrument which
is linked to the accrued interest on any loan is allocated to the
Net Income of the Fund.
At each NAV Calculation Date, the year-to-date positive Net
Income of the Fund is allocated according to the Fund waterfall
mechanism as set forth in the Issue Document, which is designed
to compensate investors based on their respective investment
risk and provide the necessary funding for the Fund’s ongoing
operations. The amount of dividend distributable to Class A,
B and C Shares at each NAV Calculation Date is limited to a
level of target dividend whose determination is defined in the
relevant subscription agreements. Operational aspects of the
Fund compensated through the waterfall structure include i) the
Foreign Exchange Currency (“FX”) reserve payment, which is
allocated annually to the Class C Shares to protect against an
erosion of value due to FX losses; ii) a component of the overall
funding for a technical assistance facility (“TA Facility”) established
in parallel with the Fund to provide technical assistance to PLIs in
their development and growth as well as to prepare and to support
PLI Investments; and iii) the Investment Manager Incentive Bonus,
as described in Note 9.2, included to align the interests of the
Investment Manager with those of the Fund‘s investors.
The TA Facility and Investment Manager Incentive Bonus are
accrued for throughout the year based on the performance of the
Fund and on the remaining amounts available subsequent to the
allocation of target dividends. In the context of the preparation
of the financial year-end net asset value, the Board of Directors
approves the final amounts based on the performance of the
Fund during the first meeting subsequent to the financial yearend. The accrual is therefore adjusted accordingly at year-end.
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All amounts exceeding target dividends and contributions
to operational aspects are used to pay out complementary
dividends to shareholders in accordance with the terms and
conditions stated in the Fund’s Issue Document.
At each NAV Calculation Date, in case the year-to-date Net
Income of the Fund is negative, it will be allocated in the
following order of priority:
Class C Shares up to the total NAV of the Class C Shares,
pro rata to the NAV of each Series of Class C Shares,
Class B Shares up to the total NAV of the Class B Shares,
pro rata to the NAV of each Series of Class B Shares,
Class A Shares up to the total NAV of the Class A Shares,
pro rata to the NAV of each Series of Class A Shares.
In addition, at each NAV Calculation Date, once the allocation of
Net Income has been made, the amount available for allocation
through the Capital Waterfall of the period is determined as
follows:
any year-to-date write backs on unrealized Investments, plus
any impairment allowances due to the deterioration in credit
quality or defaults with respect to the Investments of the
Fund, plus
any realized and unrealized gains and losses on local
currency loans to PLIs due to changes in the value of the
local currency, plus
any other year-to-date realized or unrealized capital gains
and losses on foreign exchange (other than on local currency
loans to PLIs), plus
the foreign exchange compensation amount (“FX Compensation
Amount”), which protects the C Share class against expected
FX depreciation on unhedged investments, plus
realized and unrealized gains or losses from the value of
derivative financial instruments held by the Fund. This is
calculated as the portion of the value of derivative financial
instruments held by the Fund other than the portion of the value
of the related derivative financial instruments which is linked
to the accrued interest on the loans (this accounting rule has
been defined after the Fund’s inception, which explains why no
reference to it is made in the Fund’s Issue Document).
The Capital Waterfall is allocated in the following order of
priority:
if positive Capital Waterfall, first to Class A Shares showing
a positive difference between the issue price and their NAV
(the “NAV Deficiency”) at period ends,
if positive Capital Waterfall, then to Class B Shares showing
a NAV Deficiency at period ends,
further and either positive or negative Capital Waterfall, to
Class C Shares pro rata to their NAV at period ends.
.
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In the revised version of the Issue Document which was
approved in June 2020 by the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders, the rule regarding the allocation of
Complementary Dividends was modified. Article 8.1.3 (ix) now
indicates that in case the NAV of the Class C shares is below
their Issue Price, the amount available for Complementary

Dividends will be fully allocated to Class C Shares until the
NAV of the C Shares have reached their Issue Price. If the
NAV of the Class C shares is above their issue price, the
Complementary Dividends are allocated to the Class A, Class
B and Class C shares according to the usual rule described
in 8.1.3 (ix).

NOTE 11
CALCULATION OF DISTRIBUTABLE INCOME
AND CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES
11.1. CALCULATION OF DISTRIBUTABLE INCOME
(INCOME WATERFALL)
Interest income on loans
Interest income on bank deposits
Other income
Management fees

31/12/2020

31/12/2019

12,018,521

14,100,619

255,035

354,844

51,748

40,623

(2,042,833)

(2,225,256)

Secretary fees

(235,774)

(94,773)

Legal and audit fees

(119,783)

(142,935)

Administration, custodian and domiciliation fees

(216,120)

(202,892)

Amortization of placement fees

(443,746)

-

Other administrative expenses

(85,264)

47,406

Director and IC member fees

(123,890)

(163,471)

Marketing and promotion expenses
Interest expenses on Notes
Bank charges

(29,004)

(38,805)

(654,071)

(173,877)

(6,788)

(23,346)

Net loss on derivative financial instruments (interest portion)

(5,412,699)

(5,674,000)

Reversal of the Investment Manager incentive bonus 2019

(5,674,000)

(5,755,456)

2,977,227

5,804,137

31/12/2020

31/12/2019

1,064,608

(7,827,230)

Total

11.2. CALCULATION OF CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES
SPECIFIC TO CLASS C SHARES (CAPITAL WATERFALL)
In addition to the above, capital gains and losses are allocated
only to Class C Shares, pro rata to the NAV of each Series of
Class C Shares as follows:
Net foreign exchange loss on loans to PLIs
Other net foreign exchange loss
Net gain on derivative financial instruments (notional portion)
Loan loss allowance
Total
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285,800

(76,070)

(2,092,995)

3,583,398

(458,535)

3,691,890

(1,201,122)

(628,012)
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11.3. ALLOCATION OF DISTRIBUTABLE INCOME AND
CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES
As a result of the above-mentioned calculation, the total
allocation waterfall is as follows:

Target dividend on Class A Shares
Complementary dividends on Class A Shares **
Target dividend on Class B Shares
Complementary dividends on Class B Shares **
Total dividends distributable to Class A Shares and Class B Shares

31/12/2020

31/12/2019

1,168,641

1,654,491

-

86,143

723,438

1,180,344

-

95,205

1,892,079

3,016,183

Contribution to the technical assistance facility

-

643,978

Investment Manager incentive bonus

-

109,476*

1,085,149

1,681,345

Target dividend on Class C Shares
Complementary dividends on Class C Shares **

-

353,155

(1,201,123)

(628,012)

Total allocated to Class C Shares

(115,974)

1,406,488

Profit before performance allocation

1,754,210

5,176,125

Capital gains and losses specific to Class C Shares

*out of which USD 87,581 was subsequently approved by the Board of Directors.
** In the revised version of the Issue Document which was approved in June 2020 by the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders,
the rule regarding the allocation of Complementary Dividends was modified. Article 8.1.3 (ix) now indicates that in case the NAV of the
Class C shares is below their Issue Price, the amount available for Complementary Dividends will be fully allocated to Class C Shares until
the NAV of the C Shares have reached their Issue Price. If the NAV of the Class C shares is above their issue price, the Complementary
Dividends are allocated to the Class A, Class B and Class C shares according to the usual rule described in 8.1.3 (ix).

As a result, for the year ended 31 December 2020, a total
amount of USD 1,168,641 is payable to the holders of Class
A Shares (2019: USD 1,740,634), a total amount of USD
723,438 is payable to the holders of Class B Shares (2019:
USD 1,275,549), and a total negative amount of USD 115,974
has been capitalized to the Class C Shares, pro rata to the
NAV and the subscription date of each Series of Class C
Shares (2019: positive amount of USD 1,406,488).
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NOTE 12
RISK MANAGEMENT

which could affect any given transaction with such PLI, similarly
at the country level. Portfolio valuation and covenant monitoring
is performed on an ongoing basis. This close monitoring of the
financial performance of investees enables the team to detect
as early as possible any negative trend that would negatively
impact the PLI’s ability to reimburse a loan or enter into a breach
of covenants. In addition, the Investment Manager performs the
legal risk management process, reviewing each loan covenant
of each given transaction on a monthly basis.

The Fund is mainly exposed to credit risk, market risk (which
includes mainly currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity
risk arising from the financial instruments its holds.

12.1. CREDIT RISK

For all outstanding investments in the loan portfolio, the
Investment Manager performs the following:
Legal and financial covenants monitoring: The Investment
Services team reviews all legal covenants and obligations
related to each transaction for material events on a monthly
basis, validating their compliance and reporting to the
lender. Any material event triggers a risk management
process for the underlying obligation which involves
challenging and questioning by the Investment Analysis
team over and beyond the monthly and annual monitoring.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable
to meet a commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.
The insolvency or other business failure of any one or more of
the PLIs in which the Fund has invested could have a material
and adverse effect on the Fund’s performance and ability
to achieve its objectives. The Fund runs the risk of any one
or more of the PLIs defaulting on their borrowings from the
Fund. Such PLIs may default on their interest and/or on their
principal repayment. The Fund mitigates this risk by carefully
selecting the PLIs and then by closely monitoring them on a
quarterly basis.

Quarterly Investment valuation: Pursuant to the legal
covenant review and risk management process, the
Investment Services team proposes quarterly valuation
guidance for each transaction to the Investment Manager
based on predefined rules and criteria.

Prior to submitting a PLI Investment to the Fund’s Investment
Committee, the Investment Manager, through its Sub Saharan
Africa-based team, performs a detailed country analysis, a PLI
credit risk assessment, a PLI social responsibility evaluation, a
PLI monthly monitoring report and an Anti-Money Laundering
assessment. The outcomes of all above checks are reported in
a detailed report presented to the Investment Committee.

Payment collection: On each payment date, the Investment
Services team sends out reminders and confirmation
receipts to the PLI and custodian bank. The team supervises
and assists throughout the payment collection process.

In addition, in order to be selected as suitable PLIs, financial
institutions should meet a number of criteria at the time of
investment by the Fund (in each case as reasonably determined
by the Investment Committee upon recommendation by the
Investment Manager). Such criteria relate to a wide array of
PLI dimensions, but not limited to the legal, operational, social,
governance, and environmental aspects.
On the monitoring side, the Investment Manager reviews on a
monthly basis the credit quality and financial reporting of each
PLI based on the monthly financial data that is reported by the
PLI directly in the Investment Manager’s information system
at the end of each month. In addition, the Investment Analysis
team of the Investment Manager performs an in-depth and onsite review of each PLI on an annual basis (or more frequently
in case of material change). Each analyst remains in constant
interaction with the PLI through its monthly processes and
signals any material change to the Investment Services team
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12.1.1. MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of
the Fund. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the
effect of mitigation through the use of collaterals and loan loss
allowance.
31/12/2020

31/12/2019

136,524,843

118,641,869

Derivative financial instruments*

2,424,283

4,607,248

Interest receivable on loans to PLIs

4,380,509

3,717,460

Other receivables

1,033,984

4,217,304

Statement of financial position
Loans to PLIs

Cash and cash equivalents

29,100,595

26,017,377

173,464,214

157,201,258

Committed undisbursed amounts on loans to PLIs

-

-

Total

-

-

173,464,214

157,201,258

Total
Off-balance sheet

Total gross maximum exposure
* See Note 5 for further details.

12.1.2. RISK CONCENTRATION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO
TO CREDIT RISK
Risk concentration by PLI
In the context of the credit risk analysis, the concentration
risk analysis of the Fund’s gross loans portfolio by PLI as of
31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

31 DECEMBER
2020

AMOUNTS IN
USD

%

31 DECEMBER
2019

AMOUNTS IN
USD

%

Top 1

9,928,110

7.27%

Top 1

9,765,750

8.23%

Top 3

28,777,780

21.08%

Top 3

20,384,930

17.18%

Top 5

40,436,211

29.62%

Top 5

28,786,175

24.26%

Top 10

61,432,595

45.00%

Top 10

48,241,929

40.66%

Top 20

91,934,471

67.34%

Top 20

77,642,115

65.44%

Top 30

113,773,353

83.34%

Top 30

96,142,250

81.04%

Top 40

127,778,465

93.59%

Top 40

110,651,199

93.26%

Top 50

135,936,094

99.57%

Top 50

118,404,089

99.80%

Top 52

136,524,843

100.00%

Top 53

118,641,869

100.00%
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Risk concentration by geographical regions
The table below shows the credit risk analysis of the Fund’s
gross loan portfolio per geographical region as of 31 December
2020 and 2019:

31 DECEMBER 2020
South Africa
Kenya
Nigeria

31 DECEMBER 2019

Amounts in USD
21,012,775
20,792,813

%
15.40%
15.23%

Amounts in USD
10,259,779
9,814,292

%
8.65%
8.27%

20,357,474

14.91%

9,675,420

8.16%

Burkina Faso

11,898,835

8.72%

9,305,525

7.84%

Senegal

10,945,993

8.02%

10,327,004

8.70%

Ivory Coast

10,655,972

7.81%

15,636,459

13.18%

Madagascar

7,262,434

5.32%

11,916,363

10.04%

Mali

6,158,549

4.51%

6,117,625

5.16%

Ghana

5,639,761

4.13%

9,090,386

7.66%

Uganda

5,201,147

3.81%

4,890,723

4.12%

Zambia

4,462,084

3.27%

8,424,662

7.10%

Democratic Republic of Congo

2,981,428

2.18%

4,000,050

3.37%

Tanzania

2,944,339

2.16%

2,241,690

1.89%

Angola

2,401,423

1.76%

2,791,852

2.35%

Rwanda

1,154,690

0.85%

1,381,165

1.16%

Niger

1,095,063

0.80%

378,844

0.32%

Malawi

971,170

0.71%

508,214

0.43%

Sierra Leone

498,144

0.35%

1,000,000

0.84%

90,749

0.06%

881,817

0.74%

136,524,843

100.00%

118,641,869

100.00%

Cameroon
Total

The above risk concentrations reflect the Fund’s exposures by
market and PLI. The portfolio value in the risk concentration
tables differs from the portfolio value in the statement of financial position by USD 10,825,463, which consists of the loan loss
allowance as of 31 December 2020 (2019: USD 10,366,928).
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12.1.3. CREDIT QUALITY
Credit risk exposure for each internal risk rating.
The institutional risk of PLIs is closely monitored by the
Investment Manager’s professional, independent central and
local risk experts using internal credit ratings.
The current methodology takes into account quantitative and
qualitative factors, the degree of maturity of the PLI, as well
as monthly monitoring and annual visits. The methodology is
based both on a credit risk and performance assessment. The
performance assessment reviews three years of past audited
and operational quantitative information, divided into three

analytical dimensions (operational efficiency, financial results
and social impact), and about thirty indicators.
The credit risk assessment is focused on future outlook; there
are five key dimensions, divided into about twenty five qualitative
indicators: strategy and governance, people and organization,
products and services, financial management, and control and
systems. The outcome of the scoring methodology is a credit
risk scoring and rating grade that reflects the specific risk of an
institution. It does not include any systematic risk aspects (i.e.
industry, currency, political risk among others). The rating scale
grades from AAA to D, subdivided into 10 levels, each divided
into three subsets of plus (+), neutral and minus (-).

The Fund rating’s categories are as follows:
SCALING
97% - 100%
88% - 97%
79% - 88%
70% - 79%
61% - 70%
52% - 61%
43% - 52%
37% - 43%
31% - 37%
0% - 31%

QUALIFIER
Extremely strong repayment capacity
Very strong repayment capacity
Strong repayment capacity
Moderate repayment capacity
Questionable repayment capacity
Weakened repayment capacity
Vulnerable to non-payment
High vulnerable to non-payment
Very high vulnerable to non-payment
Payment default

In March 2020, additional guidelines were implemented as
part of the Credit Risk Rating analysis, to reflect the new
risks created by the pandemic.

RATING GRADE
AAA
AA
A
BBB
BB
B
CCC
CC
C
D

In June 2020, new financial indicators (related to loans subject to payment moratorium, cash collection and cash disbursement rates) were implemented and incorporated in the
Credit Risk Rating analysis.

The table below is a credit rating analysis of the Fund’s loan
portfolio as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 based on the
Fund’s credit rating system:

AAA
AA
A
BBB
BB
B
CCC
CC
C
D

Amounts in USD
9,901,356
50,941,901
59,976,172
11,907,998
2,122,157
1,675,259

31 DECEMBER 2020
%
7.25%
37.31%
43.93%
8.73%
1.55%
1.23%

Amounts in USD
34,578,906
72,950,904
8,055,473
1,381,165
1,675,420

31 DECEMBER 2019
%
29.15%
61.49%
6.79%
1.16%
1.41%

Total

136,524,843

100.00%

118,641,869

100.00%
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Credit risk exposure to counterparties from cash deposits
As at 31 December 2020, the Fund holds cash in current
accounts of USD 21,845,201 (2019: USD 23,048,430)
and is mainly exposed to the credit risk with Credit Suisse,
whose rating is P-1 according to Moody’s and A-1 according
to Standard & Poor’s. As at 31 December 2020, cash for
a total amount of USD 629,474 (2019: USD 577,487) has
been pledged as collateral with ICBC Standard Bank rated
BBB+ according to Standard & Poor’s and presented as
other receivables.

of USD 1,685,105 (2019: USD 2,456,425) determined at
a lifetime ECL, reflect a deterioration of credit quality, as a
result of country risk and institutional risk increase. Stage 3
loans, having a loan loss allowance of USD 7,767,553
(2019: USD 5,023,714) determined at a lifetime ECL, indicate
a default situation.
The ECL model is sensitive to the determined staging of each
PLI. Should all PLIs be reallocated from stage 1 to stage 2,
the negative impact on credit loss allowance would amount to
USD 4.1 million (2019 USD 1.4 million).

As at 31 December 2020, collateral had been posted with
TCX acting as a hedge counterparty with the Fund for USD
4,890,975 (2019: USD 2,968,947), rated A- according to
Standard & Poor’s. As at 31 December 2020, collateral was
posted with ICBC Standard Bank for an amount of USD
2,260,000, rated BBB+ according to Standard & Poor’s.
The account with ICBC Standard Bank has been closed
during 2019.

As regards cash and cash equivalents, the policy of the
Fund is to book allowance for expected credit loss if the
counterparty concerned has a long-term issue credit rating
from Standard & Poor’s below A and the amount at stake is
deemed significant.

12.2. LIQUIDITY RISK
The Fund may invest in loans or other debt instruments
issued by PLIs most of which will neither be listed on a
stock exchange nor dealt in on another regulated market.
The issuance of such instruments may not be subject to
any control, review or oversight by a regulatory authority. In
most cases there is no secondary market for the trading of
the debt instruments issued by PLIs. Thus, such instruments
will generally be illiquid. Such illiquidity may affect the Fund’s
ability to vary its portfolio or dispose or liquidate part of its
portfolio in a timely fashion and at satisfactory prices in
response to changes in economic or other conditions and this
could have an adverse effect on the Fund’s financial condition
and results of operations.

Impairment assessment
The Investment Manager monitors on a monthly basis whether
each investee of the Fund is in compliance with all financial
and non-financial covenants per the respective loan contract.
In case of a breach of financial covenant with no perspective
of resolution through improvement of the situation over the
next quarter, the Investment Manager will make an impairment
recommendation to the Fund Investment Committee for the
next quarterly NAV calculation. In case of payment default (as
defined in each loan agreement), the Investment Manager will
make an impairment recommendation to the Fund Investment
Committee for the next quarterly NAV calculation if the carrying
amount of the relevant loan exceeds its recoverable amount.
The Fund recognizes expected credit losses on loans to
PLIs based on its own probability of default model. As at 31
December 2020, loan loss allowance on principal amounts to
USD 10,825,463 (2019: USD 10,366,928), which represents
7.93% (2019: 8.74%) of the gross portfolio.

In order to manage the liquidity of the Fund and address the
above risks, the following rules are applied:
Excess cash liquidity is temporarily deposited with
international investment grade banks or invested in moneymarket instruments.
The Investment Manager shall strive to maintain cash on
hand that represents the greater of 5% of the Fund Total
Assets or a 120% of the Fund’s projected 30-day liabilities.
As soon as liquidity falls below this percentage, the
Investment Manager shall notify the Board of Directors and
the Investment Committee immediately.
In addition, the Fund may at any time draw down from existing
commitments on Class A Shares and Class B Shares or
Notes and on a quarterly basis on Class C Shares. There
were no existing uncalled commitments from Shareholders
to the Fund as at 31 December 2020 (2019: none).

IFRS 9 impairment methodology is forward looking, factoring
in all future principal and interest cash flows. The loan
loss allowance is applied to the entire portfolio (including
non-workout institutions). Partner lending institutions are
separated into Stage 1, 2 and 3 loans depending on changes
to credit quality at year-end relative to credit quality at loan’s
disbursement. As of 31 December 2020, Stage 1 loans,
having a loan loss allowance of USD 1,372,805 (2019: USD
2,886,789) determined at a 12 month ECL, reflect the stable
credit quality. Stage 2 loans, having a loan loss allowance
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The following table demonstrates the forecasted cash flows of the Fund per maturity band:

31 DECEMBER 2020

LESS THAN
3 MONTHS

3 MONTHS
TO 1 YEAR

1 YEAR
TO 5 YEARS

MORE THAN
5 YEARS

UNDEFINED
MATURITY

TOTAL

(in USD)

(in USD)

Loans to PLIs (*)

22,928,418

50,184,868

72,099,073

22,638,497

-

167,850,856

Other receivables

1,033,984

-

-

-

-

1,033,984

Cash and cash equivalents

29,100,595

-

-

-

-

29,100,595

Total financial assets

53,062,997

50,184,868

72,099,073

22,638,497

-

197,985,435

(in USD)

Undrawn capital commitments
Total financial assets and
undrawn capital commitments
Bank overdraft
Notes**
Derivative financial instruments**

(in USD)

(in USD)

(in USD)

-

-

-

-

-

-

53,062,997

50,184,868

72,099,073

22,638,497

-

197,985,435

104,419

-

-

-

-

104,419

76,180

2,932,773

13,885,499

-

-

16,894,452

1,022,687

2,723,515

3,703,380

-

-

7,449,582

Accrued expenses

674,558

-

-

-

-

674,558

Other payables

404,554

-

-

-

-

404,554

Distribution payable to holders of
redeemable shares

-

1,892,079

-

-

-

1,892,079

Net assets attributable to Class A
and Class B Shares

-

17,340,881

27,189,800

10,000,000

-

54,530,681

2,282,398

24,889,248

44,778,679

10,000,000

-

81,950,325

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,282,398

24,889,248

44,778,679

10,000,000

-

81,950,325

Total financial liabilities
Committed undisbursed amounts
on loans to PLIs
Total financial liabilities and
committed undisbursed
amounts on loans to PLIs

* Based on principal amounts at historical cost, considering hedging with derivative financial instruments, and including future interest income
** Including future interest expenses
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The following table demonstrates the forecasted cash flows of the Fund per maturity band:

31 DECEMBER 2019

LESS THAN
3 MONTHS

3 MONTHS
TO 1 YEAR

1 YEAR
TO 5 YEARS

MORE THAN
5 YEARS

UNDEFINED
MATURITY

TOTAL

(in USD)

(in USD)

Loans to PLIs (*)

18,672,695

74,803,943

76,577,979

-

-

170,054,617

Other receivables

3,639,816

577,487

-

-

-

4,217,303

26,017,377

-

-

-

-

26,017,377

48,329,888

75,381,430

76,577,979

-

-

200,289,297

(in USD)

Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets
Undrawn capital commitments
Total financial assets and
undrawn capital commitments
Notes**

(in USD)

(in USD)

(in USD)

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,329,888

75,381,430

76,577,979

-

-

200,289,297

-

6,025,058

13,198,143

2,796,246

-

22,019,447

4,077,390

15,752,086

12,911,908

-

-

32,741,384

555,927

-

-

-

-

555,927

84,423

-

-

-

-

84,423

Distribution payable to holders of
redeemable shares

-

3,016,183

-

-

-

3,016,183

Net assets attributable to Class A
and Class B Shares

-

8,715,100

44,530,681

10,000,000

-

63,245,781

4,717,740

33,508,427

70,640,732

12,796,246

-

121,663,145

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,717,740

33,508,427

70,640,732

12,796,246

-

121,663,145

Derivative financial instruments**
Accrued expenses
Other payables

Total financial liabilities
Committed undisbursed amounts
on loans to PLIs
Total financial liabilities and
committed undisbursed
amounts on loans to PLIs

(*) Based on principal amounts at historical cost, considering hedging with derivative financial instruments, and including future interest income
(**) Including interest expenses
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12.3. MARKET RISK
12.3.1. INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes
in interest rates will affect future cash flows of financial
instruments.
The Fund may be exposed to interest rate risks to the extent
that the rate basis for its assets and liabilities do not fully match.
The Fund seeks to reduce this risk and to match the rate basis
on its assets and liabilities. As of 31 December 2020, 79.4%
(2019: 89.4%) of the portfolio yields floating interest rates
with USD 6-month Libor as the rate basis (local currency
denominated loans hedged for both currency and interest rate
risk). 14.6% of the portfolio is denominated in USD (2019:
10.6%), the functional currency of the Fund, yielding a fixed
USD rate.
Investor returns for Notes and redeemable shares are based
on floating interest rates with USD 6-month Libor as the rate
basis, with the exception of the Class C Shares. Due to the
structure of the Fund and the unlimited maturity of Class C
Shares, perfect matches are not achievable by the Fund.

Investors must also be aware that changes in interest rates will
affect the relative value of the Fund’s investments. In general, if
interest rates increase, it is expected that the relative value of
the Fund’s existing investments will decrease, and conversely,
if interest rates decrease, it is expected that such relative value
will increase.
The level of prevailing interest rates also may affect the
economies of the target countries and any applicable markets
outside of the target countries, and, in turn, the value of the
Fund’s investments.
Interest rate risk also arises from the possibility that changes
in interest rates will affect future cash flows of financial
instruments as well as the Fund’s profitability.
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Fund’s net
income before tax (as per the income waterfall) to various
upward parallel shifts in the US yield curve for a time period
of 180 days (base-case scenario = risk free rates do not
fluctuate). It is also worth noting that downward shifts in the US
yield curve would produce the same results, but in the opposite
direction (negative impacts).

31 DECEMBER 2020
INCREASE
(in bps)

EFFECT ON PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

31 DECEMBER 2019

EFFECT ON PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

EFFECT ON PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

EFFECT ON PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

(in USD)

(in %)

(in USD)

(in %)

10

18,789

1.19%

17,957

0.90%

50

93,946

5.95%

89,787

4.60%

100

187,892

11.90%

179,574

9.20%

12.3.2. CURRENCY RISK
Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments
fluctuates due to changes in foreign exchange rates. As at 31
December 2020, all of the Fund’s financing instruments (notes
and redeemable shares) are denominated in the functional
currency of the Fund (2019: 100%). 29.5% of the Fund’s
PLI investments are denominated in USD (2019: 16.70%),
70.5% are denominated in local currency and hedged for both
currency and interest rate risk (2019: 83.30%), and nil are
denominated in EUR and unhedged.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Fund’s total unhedged open
currency exposure amounts to USD nil (2019: nil).
The table below indicates the currencies to which the Fund
had significant exposure at 31 December 2020 and 2019 on
its PLIs investments. The analysis calculates the effect of a
reasonably possible movement of the currency rates against
the USD on the net assets and the net equity, with all other
variables held constant.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2020
CURRENCY

CHANGE IN
CURRENCY RATE

Currency

31 DECEMBER 2019

EFFECT ON THE NET
ASSETS/ NET EQUITY

CHANGE IN
CURRENCY RATE

(in USD)

(in %)

(in USD)

(in %)

10%

(52,506)

10%

(256,556)

EUR

EFFECT ON THE NET
ASSETS/ NET EQUITY

EUR

5%

(26,253)

5%

(128,278)

ZAR

10%

(83,347)

10%

(30,022)

ZAR

5%

(41,673)

5%

(60,045)

An equivalent increase would have resulted in an equivalent
but opposite impact.

The possible 5% and 10% shift in currency rates represent
management’s best estimate, having regards to historical
volatility

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the split of the loan portfolio by currency is as follows:
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Number
of loans

Total amount*
USD

USD

27

42,748,439

31.55%

XOF

XOF

29

40,754,412

30.07%

USD

ZAR

13

21,012,775

15.51%

KES

5

5,922,765

4.37%

GHS

3

5,639,762

UGX

10

5,201,147

MGA

2

3,743,118

EUR

5

3,610,065

TZS

2

2,944,339

ZMW

5

RWF

1

MWK

% of
net assets

Total amount*
USD

% of
net assets

28

41,765,456

34.83%

22

20,330,963

16.95%

MGA

5

10,232,613

8.53%

ZAR

9

10,259,779

8.55%

4.16%

GHS

7

9,090,386

7.58%

3.84%

KES

7

8,814,292

7.35%

2.76%

ZMW

9

7,942,186

6.62%

2.66%

UGX

6

4,890,723

4.08%

2.17%

EUR

2

2,565,567

2.14%

2,822,161

2.08%

TZS

1

2,241,690

1.87%

1,154,690

0.85%

MWK

1

508,214

0.42%

RWF

2

971,170

0.72%

104

136,524,843

100.74%

Number
of loans

-

-

-

97

118,641,869

98.93%

* net of the effect of the forward exchange transactions as of 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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12.3.3. OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failures,
human errors, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
perform, operational risk can cause damage to reputation,
have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss.
The Fund cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding
to potential risks, the Fund is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access, authorization
and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment
processes, including the use of internal audit.

NOTE 13
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

INVESTMENT MANAGER
Management fee and Incentive Bonus
Symbiotics S.A. serves as the Investment Manager of the
Fund. The Investment Manager is entitled to a management
fee. In addition, depending on the performance of the Fund,
the Investment Manager might be entitled to additional performance-based remuneration. See Note 9.1, 9.2, 10 and 11 for
further details.
PLACEMENT FEES
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were a recognition of placement fees of USD 443,746 (2019: USD nil).

NOTE 15
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements and has no restrictions on the issue, repurchase
and resale of shares.
The Fund’s objectives for managing capital are:
To invest the capital in investments meeting the description,
risk exposure and expected return indicated in its prospectus.
To achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by
investing in diversified portfolio, by participating in derivative
and other advanced capital markets and by using various
investment strategies and hedging techniques.
To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the
Fund and fulfill all financial obligations.
To maintain sufficient size to make the operation of the Fund
cost efficient.

NOTE 14
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial or operational decisions or is
part of key management of the Fund.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, an amount of USD
7,968 of travel expenses was reimbursed to the Directors
(2019: USD 25,710). Directors’ and IC member fees for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to USD 123,890
(2019: USD 163,471). The listing of the members of the Board
of Directors is shown on page 3 of the annual report.
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On 12 May 2021, the Board of Directors resolved to authorize
the issuance of the financial statements of the Fund for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and decided to submit them
to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval.

NOTE 16
CORONAVIRUS COVID-19
The coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) was first identified
in December 2019 in Wuhan, the capital of China’s Hubei province. Since that time COVID-19 spread across China and the
world and on 11 March 2020 the World Health Organization
(WHO) officially declared COVID-19 a pandemic.
With a few exceptions, the spread of the disease through the
sub-Saharan African (SSA) countries where the Fund invests
has been more restrained relative to other regions of the world
and by the end of the year 2020, most countries had lifted
the most onerous restrictions around group gatherings, business operations and international travel as all borders have
re- opened. The impact of the pandemic on the economies of
the countries where the Fnd invests have nevertheless been
significant, with varying degrees depending on the dependency
of the local economies to oil exports, tourism, cash crops, etc.
As disclosed within Note 2.4.7 and Note 3 the Fund assesses
on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECLs),
which are composed of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD) taking into account
several different factors related to credit risk and country risk
relative to the underlying debt instruments.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Since the second quarter 2020, the expected impact of the
pandemic on the PLIs has been assessed through stress tests
which have been taken into account in the choice of the calculation of the PD and LGD. Given the conservative provisioning
of the Fund prior to the crisis, additional provisioning was not
necessary. As a result of the various measures taken across the
region to control the spread of the disease, during 2020 six PLIs
(approximately USD 9.6 million in principal) have been moved
to Stage 3. Out of these six PLIs, two (of USD 2.3 million in
principal) were eventually able to honor their principal payments
on due date in 2020. Two others, holding multiple loans in the
Fund, followed the payment schedule (for loans representing
USD 3.4 million), but requested extensions for some of their maturing instalments (USD 0.9 million). Finally, two other institutions
(representing USD 3 million) defaulted their expected principal
payments. All of the six PLIs that were moved to Stage 3 in 2020
were however able to continue serving their interest obligations.

economy. They could be negatively affected by a second or
third wave of the disease, the impact of which is not factored
into the provisions for now.
that has not impeded its ability to operate on a going concern
basis. Furthermore, the fair value measurements and ECLs do
not reflect the possible credit losses related to COVID-19.
Further refinements were made to the provisioning model at
the end of the third quarter to better reflect the experience
of the Investment Manager since IFRS 9 was implemented in
2018, as well as adjustments that were made to the credit risk
monitoring tools to adapt to the impact of COVID-19 and to
integrate guidance from the auditors and other industry bodies.

NOTE 17
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Many of the countries and PLIs are still in recovery and have
to cope with the overall effect the disease has on the global

There are no material transactions subsequent to the year end.

31/12/2020

31/12/2019

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year:
Class A
Class B
Class C

NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING

437.049
781.632
1,117.091

377.049
1,242.813
1,117.091

Number of shares issued during the year:
Class A
Class B
Class C

488.286

60,000
403.286
-

(87.151)
-

(864,467)
-

349.898
781.632
1,605.377

437.049
781.632
1,117.091

Number of shares redeemed during the year:
Class A
Class B
Class C
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year:
Class A
Class B
Class C

31 DECEMBER 2020

31 DECEMBER 2019

31 DECEMBER 2018

Class A

CLASS OF SHARES

100,000.00

100,000.00

100,000.00

Class B

25,000.00

25,000.00

25,000.00

Class C1 to C4

50,638.69

50,742.13

49,483.07

Class C5

49,999.04

-

-
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
AND INVESTMENT MANAGER

SICAV-SIF

TA FACILITY

REGMIFA SHAREHOLDERS
DONORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TA FACILITY COMMITTEE

FOREX
COMMITTEE

TA FACILITY MANAGER

INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

FUND INVESTMENT MANAGER

PARTNER LENDING INSTITUTIONS

MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM-SIZED ENTERPRISES
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The following persons served as Directors
of the Fund during the year:

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
The following persons served as members of the Investment
Committee of the Fund and their alternate during the year:

MR. KARL-HEINZ FLEISCHHACKER
Chairman

MR. KARL-HEINZ FLEISCHHACKER
MR. STEFAN HIRCHE (alternate)

MR. RUURD BROUWER
(resigned on 31 May 2019)

MR. NJORD ANDREWES (resigned on 31 March 2019)
MR. OLE SANDSBRATEN (alternate)

MS. LAURE WESSEMIUS-CHIBRAC
(nominated on 31 May 2019)

MS. CHRISTINE LIER-TOMOWSKI
DR. GIUSEPPE BALLOCCHI (alternate)

DR. MARCEL GERARD GOUNOT
(resigned on 20 September 2019)

MR. YVES FERREIRA
MR. ENRICO PINI (alternate)

MS. CLAUDIA HUBER
(nominated on 20 September 2019)

MS. PETRA ZEIER
(until August 2019)
MS. VALERIE DUJARDIN (alternate)

MR. STEFAN HIRCHE
TA FACILITY COMMITTEE
The following persons served as members of TA Facility
Committee of the Fund during the year:

MR. ARTHUR SLETTEBERG
DR. GIUSEPPE BALLOCCHI

MS. KLAUDIA BERGER
MR. FRANCOIS LAGIER
MR. SAMI MASRI
DR. GIUSEPPE BALLOCCHI
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

CONTACTS

Symbiotics S.A.
31, rue de la Synagogue
CH-1204 Geneva
Switzerland

Symbiotics Information, Consulting and Services
South Africa (PTY) Limited
4 Loop street – Studio 502
Cape Town
South Africa 8001

MS EMMANUELLE JAVOY
Head of Blended Finance

MR. DUNCAN FRAYNE
Regional Director

MS LUZ LEYVA
Portfolio Manager

MS. ANISSA KADI
Senior Investment Analyst

MR MARIANO LARENA
Head of Impact

MS. LISA PUTTER
Investment Analyst

MR BEZANT CHONGO
Head of Capacity Building Unit
MR FLORIAN GROHS
Relationship Manager Blended Finance
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ABBREVIATIONS
ESR
Environmental and Social Responsibility

LEGAL NAME
Regional MSME Investment Fund
for Sub-Saharan Africa S.A., SICAV-SIF (REGMIFA)

FX
Foreign exchange

FUND TYPE
Investment public limited company under
Luxembourg law, qualified as a specialized
investment fund

GAV
Gross Asset Value (total assets of the Fund)
GNI
Gross National Income

REGISTERED OFFICE
5, rue Jean Monnet L-2180 Luxembourg
Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

LMIH
Low and middle-income households

INCEPTION DATE
May 2010

LuxFLAG
Luxembourg Finance Labelling Agency

MAIN FINANCIAL PRODUCTS
Medium- to long-term senior loans at fixed
and floating interest rates, term deposits,
letters of credit, guarantees

MFI
Microfinance institution
MIV
Microfinance investment vehicle

INVESTMENT CURRENCY
USD, EUR, local currency

MSME
Micro-, small and medium enterprise

INVESTMENT MANAGER
AND TA FACILITY MANAGER
Symbiotics SA

NBFI
Non-bank financial institution

STRUCTURING AGENT
Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KfW)

NGO
Non-governmental organization

GENERAL SECRETARY
Innpact Sàrl

PLI
Partner lending institution

CUSTODIAN / ADMINISTRATOR
Credit Suisse (Luxembourg) S.A. and
Credit Suisse Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.A.

SME
Small and medium enterprise
TA
Technical assistance

LEGAL COUNSEL
Linklaters LLP

TAF
Technical Assistance Facility

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young SA
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TA DONORS
Development Bank of Austria (Oesterreichische Entwicklungsbank – OeEB)
European Investment Bank (EIB)
European Union
Government of Luxembourg
KfW (Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau) on behalf of the German
Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development
(Bundesministerium für wirtschaftliche Zusammenarbeit und
Entwicklung – BMZ)
REGMIFA Fund
Spanish Agency for International Development Cooperation
(Agencia Española de Cooperación Internacional para el
Desarrollo – AECID)

REGMIFA INVESTORS
ASN Bank
Development Bank of Austria (Oesterreichische Entwicklungsbank – OeEB)
European Investment Bank (EIB)
French Development Agency (Agence Française de Développement - AFD)
Instituto de Credito Oficial (ICO) in the name and on behalf of
the Spanish Government and the Kingdom of Spain (Spanish
Cooperation)
KfW (Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau) on behalf of the German
Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development
(Bundesministerium für wirtschaftliche Zusammenarbeit und
Entwicklung – BMZ)
Netherlands Development Finance Company (Nederlandse
Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden - FMO)
Spanish Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Cooperation (Ministerio de Asuntos Exteriores y de Cooperación)
Private institutional investors
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SYMBIOTICS SA
Investment Manager and TA Facility Manager of REGMIFA
Geneva

Cape Town

REGMIFA registered office

Rue de la Synagogue 31
CH-1204 Geneva
Switzerland

4 Loop St, Studio 502
Cape Town 8001
South Africa

5, rue Jean Monnet
L- 2013 Luxembourg
Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

T. +41 22 338 15 40
F. +41 22 338 15 41
E-mail: info@regmifa.com

T. +27 21 425 51 19
T. +27 21 425 51 20
F. +27 21 425 51 21

E-mail: info@regmifa.com
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